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          1  SANITATION AND SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT

          2                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Good afternoon,

          3  everyone. My name is Michael McMahon. I'm: Chairman

          4  of the New York City Council Committee on Sanitation

          5  and Solid Waste Management, and I hereby convene

          6  this hearing.

          7                 Today the Committee will hear

          8  testimony regarding Intro. No. 104, known as the

          9  E-waste Bill. We're not doing the trans fat bill,

         10  too? Oh, that's at DOH, okay.

         11                 One year ago this Committee held a

         12  hearing on the predecessor to this bill, Intro. 643.

         13  Due to the Committee's focus on the passage of the

         14  Solid Waste Management Plan, and the hope that there

         15  might be some action taken towards the passage of a

         16  State or federal bill, action on this bill was

         17  postponed until now.

         18                 As part of the City's Solid Waste

         19  Management Plan, the City committed to, one, support

         20  extended producer responsibility legislation, which

         21  Intro. No. 104 is; and, two, committed that within

         22  six months of the effective date of the SWMP to meet

         23  with Council representatives, to draft, to discuss

         24  the Council draft electronics recycling legislation

         25  in an effort to reach consensus on a bill that meets
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          2  collective goals of cost effective diversion of

          3  electronics from disposal while not adversely

          4  impacting the City's retail business.

          5                 The six-month period is rapidly

          6  approaching and this hearing will begin the process

          7  of developing an e-waste bill that the Council and

          8  the Mayor can support.

          9                 Intro. 104 provides for manufacturer

         10  take-back and recycling of computers, including CPU

         11  monitors, keyboards, monitors themselves, laptops

         12  and mice, TVs and digital music players.

         13                 The bill allows the manufacturers the

         14  flexibility to determine exactly how they will

         15  collect the recycled e-waste while setting yearly

         16  performance goals that they must meet.

         17                 We believe we are the first

         18  municipality to propose such a law, and the first

         19  law in this country to propose full extended

         20  manufacturer responsibility for the end of life cost

         21  for these items.

         22                 Although the idea of extended

         23  consumer responsibility has been adopted extensively

         24  in Europe, it has yet to be adopted as public policy

         25  in this country. We hope to change that. We all
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          2  would hope that the federal government would pass a

          3  uniformed e-waste recycling law, but unfortunately,

          4  that does not now appear to be a reality in the near

          5  future.

          6                 Likewise, our friends in the State

          7  Legislature do not appear ready to take the lead in

          8  this area, despite the herculean efforts to get such

          9  a bill passed by Assemblyman William Colton, who

         10  will testify about his efforts today before this

         11  Committee.

         12                 In the meantime, the cost of

         13  exporting e-waste by the City continues to climb as

         14  the cost of exporting waste skyrockets.

         15                 In addition, we, as a City, continue

         16  to export toxic materials to incinerators in New

         17  Jersey and landfills in Pennsylvania and Virginia.

         18  We must be aware of the effect that this has on our

         19  neighbors and take the necessary action to rectify

         20  it, as we all make sure that our cell phones are on

         21  stun.

         22                 Okay, sorry. The area of e-waste has

         23  been progressing rapidly since our last hearing.

         24  Three states, California, Maine and Maryland, have

         25  begun implementing e-waste programs in their states.
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          2  After 18 months of study and debate, the northeast

          3  regional electronic cycling conference, released

          4  their model e-waste legislation, and computer

          5  manufacturers are expanding their takeback programs,

          6  and some are even advocating for more manufacturer

          7  responsibility.

          8                 Today we will hear from proponents

          9  and opponents of this bill - from manufacturers,

         10  recyclers and consumers. We will listen to all

         11  reasonable suggestions to improve the bill, and

         12  after this hearing begin the process to build a

         13  consensus bill true to the basic principal of

         14  manufacturer responsibility that will accomplish our

         15  goals.

         16                 Our first witness representing the

         17  Administration, we are pleased to welcome Robert

         18  Lange, Director of the Sanitation's Office of Waste

         19  Prevention, Reuse and Recycling.

         20                 I just want to point out that I'm

         21  joined by Committee member Maria del Carmen Arroyo,

         22  and my colleague Gale Brewer, and I thank them for

         23  coming today.

         24                 And Mr. Lange, you have the floor. Do

         25  any of your colleagues want to join you? They kind
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          2  of have you sitting out there by yourself. I don't

          3  know if Mr. Orlan or maybe Counsel. You trust him on

          4  his own like that? Okay. All right, go ahead.

          5                 MR. LANGE: Good afternoon, Chairman

          6  McMahon and members of the Committee on Sanitation

          7  and Solid Waste Management. I am Robert Lange, the

          8  Director of Waste Prevention, Reuse and Recycling

          9  for the New York City Department of Sanitation. I

         10  welcome the opportunity to appear before you this

         11  afternoon on behalf of Commissioner John Doherty and

         12  the Department to testify on Intro. 104 under

         13  consideration today.

         14                 As proposed, Intro. 104 places the

         15  responsibility on manufacturers of electronic

         16  equipment to develop a reclamation program for

         17  safely managing discarded electronic equipment at

         18  the end of its useful consumer life.

         19                 While the Department supports the

         20  underlying intent of Intro. 104, the Department

         21  believes that at a minimum a statewide comprehensive

         22  electronics recycling program would better foster a

         23  long-term sustainable infrastructure for e-waste

         24  recycling.

         25                 Legislation at the State or most
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          2  preferably the federal level, would more likely

          3  create recycling incentives, maximized collection

          4  efficiency, and succeed both environmentally and

          5  economically.

          6                 The Department will continue to

          7  support New York State electronic equipment

          8  recycling legislation in the upcoming State

          9  legislative session that promotes manufacturer

         10  responsibility and ensures that e-waste collection

         11  costs are not borne by the general taxpayer or their

         12  local governments.

         13                 I would now like to turn our

         14  attention to this afternoon's proposed bill, Intro.

         15  104, and share with you some of the Department's

         16  preliminary views and comments on the bill's

         17  provisions, particularly those that potentially

         18  impact the Department's ability to execute

         19  successfully the oversight and monitoring portions

         20  of the proposed legislation.

         21                 Again, Intro. 104 seeks to establish

         22  a comprehensive system for diverted electronic

         23  equipment from the waste stream, and it pose the

         24  responsibility upon electronics manufacturers to

         25  develop an electronics reclamation program, both
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          2  principles that we support.

          3                 However, among the implementation

          4  provisions of 104, there are three major

          5  implementation challenges that I would now like to

          6  specifically address.

          7                 First, the bill directs each

          8  manufacturer to submit its own detailed collection

          9  and recycling electronic waste management plan to

         10  the Department, which the Department must approve

         11  within 90 days of submission.

         12                 Because covered electronic equipment

         13  is broadly defined to include a wide array of items,

         14  such as regular and laptop computers, flat and

         15  full-sized computer monitors, Plasma TVs and older

         16  console television sets, Ipods and numerous other

         17  items. The Department anticipates that dozens of

         18  electronic waste management plans could potentially

         19  be submitted under this requirement.

         20                 These plans will be vastly different

         21  from each other, all identifying different

         22  categories of e-waste and alternate recycling

         23  methods. Thus, we would expect that manufacturers

         24  will submit their plans at approximately the same

         25  time, putting off submitting until the deadline is
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          2  at hand. The Department would require far more time

          3  than the 90 days currently allowed for us to review

          4  and evaluate these numerous plans.

          5                 Therefore, the Department recommends

          6  that manufacturers be encouraged to work

          7  collaboratively to formulate and submit only a

          8  handful of different plans for review, as well as

          9  extend the Department's review time if Intro. 104 is

         10  advanced.

         11                 Second, the bill mandates the

         12  Department calculate each manufacturer's market

         13  share based on the best available information,

         14  meaning, the annual sales of manufacturers that sell

         15  electronic equipment in New York City.

         16                 In the past, in discussions with

         17  industry representatives, when the subject of market

         18  share was discussed, we were informed by

         19  manufacturers that they do not maintain this kind of

         20  data.

         21                 For the Department to successfully

         22  oversee the implementation of an e-waste recycling,

         23  as envisioned in Intro. 104, we will need assurance

         24  that the Department will be furnished with reliable,

         25  accurate, up-to-date information on electronic
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          2  product sales, otherwise bill provisions linked to

          3  unattainable data will be unenforceable.

          4                 Third and last, the bill creates a

          5  private right of action against any party, the

          6  government or private, for failure to enforce the

          7  provisions of this bill.

          8                 We must be mindful that a private

          9  right of action would afford any party the ability

         10  to seek an injunction prohibiting a manufacturer or

         11  retailer from selling electronics in the City, even

         12  if based solely upon a minor infraction.

         13                 The bill designates enforcement by

         14  the Department in proceedings before the

         15  Environmental Control Board, and includes the

         16  imposition of civil penalties for first time and

         17  subsequent offenders. We believe this will generally

         18  be the appropriate remedy and consistent with other

         19  administrative code violations the Department

         20  enforces.

         21                 On a final note, I would like to

         22  point out that the Department has sponsored in the

         23  absence of comprehensive federal or state

         24  legislation a series of enormously successful

         25  residential or electronics recycling events
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          2  throughout the five boroughs over the past three

          3  consecutive years.

          4                 Resident participation at these

          5  events has increased each time we have held one,

          6  demonstrating both a concern and a willingness on

          7  the part of the public, regardless of the

          8  inconvenience to recycle their post consumer

          9  e-waste.

         10                 This year the Department sponsored

         11  several borough-based events with some financial

         12  assistance from both Best Buy and Intel.

         13                 These events allow residents to

         14  recycle up to five pieces of unwanted electronic

         15  equipment, including computers, monitors,

         16  televisions, printers, scanners, keyboards, mice and

         17  cell phones. All of the equipment collected is

         18  reused or recycled, except for the small portion of

         19  the material collected that has no remaining scrap

         20  value.

         21                 The Department's recycling outreach

         22  includes promoting these electronic recycling events

         23  through a direct mail flyer sent to all City

         24  households and community newspaper advertisements.

         25                 In September 2006, the Department
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          2  held events in Brooklyn, Manhattan, Staten Island,

          3  and earlier this month held events in Bronx and

          4  Queens.

          5                 I am pleased to report that during

          6  the spring and fall 2006 electronic drop-off events,

          7  approximately 12,500 residents in total

          8  participated, and the Department received over

          9  618,860 pounds or 309 tons of post-consumer

         10  electronic equipment as a result.

         11                 In closing, we hope to engage in

         12  productive dialogue with the Council and the

         13  electronics industry in the coming months on

         14  solutions for responsibly managing consumer e-waste.

         15                 We encourage all electronics

         16  manufacturers to act in partnership with one another

         17  to formulate a comprehensive reclamation plan

         18  designed to divert and manage electronic waste.

         19                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         20  testify this afternoon.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Thank you, Mr.

         22  Lange. And I also want to thank you for my brown

         23  leaf bags that were dropped off at my house about

         24  ten days ago for the brown bag initiative which

         25  we're doing in the fall and I think it's going to be

                                                            16

          1  SANITATION AND SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT

          2  very successful. There's a lot of brown bags going

          3  out in my neighborhood, so thank you very much.

          4                 When I hear your testimony, I just

          5  want to make sure I understand it correctly. I think

          6  what I'm getting is that the Department agrees with

          7  the goal of recycling as much e-waste as possible to

          8  reuse and to recycle; is that fair to say?

          9                 MR. LANGE: Yes, and the

         10  responsibility should be that of manufacturers, not

         11  local governments.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Okay. And the

         13  Council agrees with that, and the bill that we have

         14  proposed certainly looks to place the responsibility

         15  on the manufacturers. And some of the concerns you

         16  raise I think, as you rightly note, the public has

         17  really adopted the notion of recycling for e-waste,

         18  most people realize it's the right thing to do, and

         19  they will cooperate. So, we have public

         20  participation. But for the private right of action

         21  and what the violation should be, and getting the

         22  available data from the industry, which I'm sure we

         23  can as to market share, and the timing needed to

         24  administer the plans, are those the only concerns

         25  you have with the actual bill itself?
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          2                 MR. LANGE: I think those are the

          3  major concerns. Another way to summarize this is

          4  that the bill anticipates a regulatory power on the

          5  part of the Department of Sanitation that really

          6  doesn't exist. The Department of Sanitation is

          7  primarily a service agency, it's not a regulatory

          8  agency, and to oversee something like this, at least

          9  the way it's framed right now is beyond our powers.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: But to

         11  administer this program you would need enforcement

         12  powers. You have enforcement powers now, don't you?

         13                 MR. LANGE: We have enforcement

         14  powers, but the bill assumes an ability of the

         15  Department of Sanitation to monitor the private

         16  sector sales in a way that is not necessarily

         17  feasible.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: I mean, that

         19  part of it, that, in my opinion, is something that

         20  can be worked out. If that could be solved in a way

         21  that would allow the Department to enforce the

         22  program, without actually monitoring the sales, and

         23  by requiring that the industry actually provide us

         24  with the data, because I'm sure that they can break

         25  it down and tell us what the market shares are,

                                                            18

          1  SANITATION AND SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT

          2  they've done it in other industries and they've done

          3  it in other areas under the law.

          4                 If we got past that, what other

          5  issues would you take with this bill?

          6                 MR. LANGE: Well, I think as I

          7  testified in general, the Administration's

          8  preference is for federal or State legislation,

          9  rather than local legislation.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Okay. And that's

         11  what I wanted to come up to.

         12                 So, let's just agree then that there

         13  are some technicalities that you've spoken to, that

         14  if we could work out, we could agree on language of

         15  a bill that the Department and the Administration

         16  would agree to, but for the fact that they would

         17  prefer that the State and federal government would

         18  proceed in this area and not leave it to the

         19  localities.

         20                 MR. LANGE: I think that's correct,

         21  and as the City Council and the Administration

         22  agreed in the Solid Waste Management Plan, that if

         23  federal and state legislation is not advanced, then

         24  they were willing to talk with the Council and come

         25  to some kind of compromise on this.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: And do you see

          3  in the State or federal government, in the offing,

          4  any point where an agreement will be reached and

          5  action will be taken?

          6                 MR. LANGE: I don't believe on the

          7  federal level it will happen, but there are a number

          8  of State bills that are proposed that have certain

          9  flaws in them that if corrected could be potential

         10  laws that we could live with.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: But I just

         12  wonder why we're looking to State or federal

         13  government on this type of issue, which is from my

         14  mind a local sanitation issue.

         15                 MR. LANGE: Well, it's both a local, a

         16  state and a federal issue.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Right, but we --

         18  I'm sorry. I didn't mean to cut you off.

         19                 MR. LANGE: I mean, it's material

         20  that's generated everywhere and it requires, it's

         21  really something that would make more sense to be

         22  addressed on a federal level, it's just not going to

         23  be addressed on a federal level but on a State

         24  level, and, yes, as expressed in the Solid Waste

         25  Management Plan, if it's not going to be addressed
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          2  on the federal and the State level, then the

          3  Administration is ready to discuss it with the

          4  Council. But the hope is that there will be some

          5  movement from the State legislation at least.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: But it seems to

          7  me that the impetus will be at the local level, as

          8  it is on many issues. I mean, on the local level we

          9  require metal, glass and plastic recycling, even

         10  though the bottles are shipped across State lines.

         11  The same with paper and toxic materials and the

         12  like.

         13                 And it's certainly in the City, one

         14  has to bear the burden of their not being a program,

         15  as the City is the one that has to deal with the

         16  trash and deal with the landfilling. So, it's

         17  certainly in the City's interest, more than anyone

         18  else, to make sure there is a plan; would you agree

         19  with that?

         20                 MR. LANGE: Yes. It's also in the

         21  City's interest to make sure that this doesn't fall

         22  on local government in terms of full responsibility

         23  for it.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Right. But

         25  that's why we like the idea of manufacturer
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          2  responsibility, which I think, I mean you would

          3  agree any State or federal plan would have to have

          4  as well to be successful, or ultimately the cost

          5  would go back to the local government, as it always

          6  does, from our partners in government.

          7                 MR. LANGE: Yes. Actually, also the

          8  way we read the State law is that are proposed so

          9  far, all of those could potentially all default to

         10  being local responsibility, and that's why we think

         11  that our legislative people want to recommend

         12  changes to those proposed State laws.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: And that was

         14  sort of my next point. If the State were to deal

         15  with this, I mean if passed as pro law, basically

         16  they would say all localities have to come up with a

         17  plan to deal with this, and then we'd be doing, back

         18  to doing what we think we should be doing now.

         19                 Do you really think that the State

         20  will adopt a Statewide system and program that will

         21  relieve us of the responsibility overseeing,

         22  managing it and implementing it?

         23                 MR. LANGE: I don't think anybody

         24  knows whether they will in fact do that. The

         25  expectation is, since there are so many proposals,
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          2  one of those will eventually advance beyond the

          3  stage that they are right now.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Okay, but one

          5  more point on this with the Solid Waste Management

          6  Plan Law of 1989, I think basically the State said,

          7  okay, these are our goals that we want to address

          8  and you local governments have to deal with it.

          9  Wouldn't they do that again in this area?

         10                 MR. LANGE: The current proposals,

         11  yes. That's the way they would base it. They would

         12  wind up falling upon us to set up the actual

         13  programs.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: So, we might as

         15  well get started now.

         16                 MR. LANGE: With maybe one exception.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Okay.

         18                 How long -- I mean, we certainly

         19  agree, it's in the SWMP, that if we get to a point

         20  where there is no action on the State or federal

         21  level, we have to work together to come up with a

         22  plan. In the Administration's mind, how long of a

         23  wait is prudent?

         24                 MR. LANGE: I believe the expectation

         25  is the next legislative session.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Okay. When you

          3  say a session, is that one year or two years? I

          4  forget how they define the session. Do you mean one

          5  year working over or two years?

          6                 MR. LANGE: Two years.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Okay. I'm just

          8  laughing, because I knew you were going to need --

          9  you've got the legal team, I knew you were going to

         10  need them --

         11                 MR. LANGE: Legal counsel.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: I mean, you've

         13  got the legal team, I knew you were going to need

         14  them and they should sit there. Okay.

         15                 We've been joined by Council Member

         16  Jessica Lappin. We thank her.

         17                 Okay, so just to sum up, if the

         18  technical problems that you spoke to are addressed,

         19  then the only issue that the Administration would

         20  have at this point is timing, if you will, or from

         21  what level of government the mandate comes from, to

         22  implement an electronic recycling plan, US plan,

         23  that would certainly benefit all New York City, all

         24  New Yorkers, and certainly stop us from sending

         25  polluting materials to landfills.
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          2                 MR. LANGE: If I understand you

          3  correctly, yes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Okay, good

          5  answer.

          6                 Council Member Brewer.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you very

          8  much. And I want to say, I went to the Union Square

          9  and we recycled all the electronic devices in my

         10  household, so I appreciate it. And we're doing

         11  another one November 12th at Lincoln Center. So,

         12  thank you for the great publicity on this events.

         13                 How do you envision, even on the

         14  City, State or local, if local is to happen, the

         15  actual implementation of such a law?

         16                 In other words, if the manufacturer

         17  is to be the place where one returned, would it be

         18  like what we do with the cartridges for the

         19  printers? How would it actually logistically happen?

         20                 MR. LANGE: Actually, as I testified,

         21  our preference is for federal or State legislation.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: No, I know

         23  that. But I'm just saying on any scenario, how does

         24  it actually happen?

         25                 MR. LANGE: I don't think we have the
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          2  necessary solution for that. However, the industry

          3  has an infrastructure for delivering a brand new

          4  computer to you, presumably that same infrastructure

          5  can be used to take back the consumer once the

          6  electronics equipment, once its useful life is

          7  spent.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: In other

          9  words, if I buy it in J&R, which is my preference,

         10  then I would take it back to J&R and J&R would ship

         11  it back; is that what you're thinking?

         12                 MR. LANGE: I'm not saying that's

         13  exactly how it would happen. But again, the industry

         14  has a very elaborate infrastructure for delivering

         15  goods to consumers, presumably that same

         16  infrastructure can be used to take goods back.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay.

         18                 I guess my feeling is we are not, at

         19  least in Manhattan, we are not a car facility. We

         20  take the subway everywhere. And I just think that we

         21  would get lazy and not lug all of this equipment.

         22  It's just something that is slightly different than

         23  other parts of the country, and I think obviously

         24  when you have your very special community-based,

         25  Department of Sanitation based recycling days, it's
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          2  a happening. People get together, they feel good

          3  about what they're doing, lugging something down to

          4  the electronic store, it just has a different

          5  feeling.

          6                 I think maybe we have to be a little

          7  bit more creative. The other question I had is not

          8  everybody purchases computer that is from a

          9  manufacturer. Many of us like me go to the guy on

         10  the corner and he puts it together. So, there's no

         11  manufacturer. So, would you still have to have these

         12  kinds of recycling days that you have sponsored in

         13  your scenario, City, State or federal?

         14                 MR. LANGE: My preference as a member

         15  of Sanitation would be no. But some kind of program

         16  like that might have to be set up for dealing with a

         17  small portion of the waste, and you're right,

         18  accommodations in New York City would have to be

         19  made for that portion of the population that does

         20  not have a car.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: And then for

         22  the City itself, right now, Department of Education,

         23  et cetera, where does their e-waste go currently?

         24                 MR. LANGE: Under federal law, I

         25  believe, right? All large institutional generators
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          2  of that kind of waste are required to have it

          3  handled separately from their refuse.

          4                 I don't know exactly what the Board

          5  of Ed's accommodations, DCAS, for example, has a

          6  contract for all City agencies.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay. Because

          8  I think there's a lot of closets in the schools that

          9  have a lot of computers. Okay, thank you, Mr.

         10  Chairman.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Thank you,

         12  Council Member Brewer. We've also been joined by the

         13  sponsor of the bill, Council Member DeBlasio.

         14                 Questions? Jessica first. Council

         15  Member Lappin and then Council Member DeBlasio.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Thank you, Mr.

         17  Chairman. And I'm proud to be a co-sponsor of this

         18  bill and I just wanted to piggy-back on Council

         19  Member Brewer's comments. I mean, it would seem to

         20  me that you could institute a program where you get

         21  shipped a box, an empty box, and then you put your

         22  equipment into the box with, it comes with a postage

         23  label on it. And then you can have those picked up

         24  when your UPS guy drops off, he can pick them up.

         25                 That's something similar to actually
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          2  how printer cartridges are recycled and it's very

          3  easy to go on line or make a phone call, they send

          4  you a box that's empty, you put in what you need and

          5  then you have it ready to be picked up. So, for

          6  people in Manhattan who don't have cars, or it's

          7  harder to get around with their equipment, that's

          8  something that works pretty easily.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: No, I agree 100

         10  percent. It's an excellent point, but there will --

         11  it's also good to be cognizant of the fact that

         12  there may still need to be some small program to

         13  capture that which is not captured through the

         14  manufacturer return program, and certainly the case

         15  where the products are not made by the larger

         16  manufacturers. But in general, what you speak to is

         17  what we believe in why this bill would make sense

         18  for the majority of circumstances.

         19                 Council Member DeBlasio.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: Thank you

         21  very much, Mr. Chairman.

         22                 I want to first of all thank you and

         23  your very, very able Council for all the work you

         24  have done to make this legislation possible. I am

         25  honored to be the sponsor of the legislation, but it
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          2  would not be possible without the work that went

          3  into the drafting of the legislation, but also

          4  wouldn't be possible to act on it appropriately, had

          5  we not had the success with the Solid Waste plan,

          6  which was very much due to the work that each of you

          7  did. So, I thank you.

          8                 I also want to take a moment and

          9  thank the Department of Sanitation. I had the honor

         10  of being involved with one of the recycling days in

         11  my neighborhood in Park Slope that was done in

         12  Prospect Park a few weeks back, and it was an

         13  extraordinary public response to it.

         14                 And, again, I think the hope of this

         15  bill is to change things for the better so we won't

         16  need that methodology, or at least not the same kind

         17  of methodology, but in the meantime I really thank

         18  you for the way your agency has approached ensuring

         19  there is an opportunity for recycling.

         20                 I just want to say I think it's

         21  obvious we understand this is a very complex issue.

         22  I understand it's not necessarily an easy one to

         23  solve and it certainly involves all levels of

         24  government and the manufacturers of the private

         25  sector.

                                                            30

          1  SANITATION AND SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT

          2                 But I'm working from the assumption

          3  that as much as we would ideally like to see federal

          4  action, or at least State action, that particularly

          5  in light of the City's achievements with the Solid

          6  Waste Plan, it's now time to work from the

          7  assumption that we may have to work on things

          8  locally and take action locally, because I don't

          9  think we have the option of waiting indefinitely for

         10  the federal or State government.

         11                 So, I just want to confirm that.  I

         12  know you were asked before, but I just want to just

         13  verify that, and I see it in your testimony, the

         14  Administration would love to see that, too, would

         15  love to see a federal law, would love to see a State

         16  action, but that you agree with our analysis that

         17  there's not enough prospect for us to assume we

         18  should wait.

         19                 MR. LANGE: I didn't say exactly that.

         20  I said --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: No, that's

         22  why I'm asking, is for clarification.

         23                 MR. LANGE: The Administration has not

         24  excluded a local bill, but that's really the last

         25  resort, the preference is for federal or state law
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          2  first.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: So, let me

          4  ask it again this way. Again, I apologize for coming

          5  in a few minutes late, I missed some of your earlier

          6  discussion. I would love that also. I think we're

          7  kindred, we would all like to see a national

          8  solution here and a Statewide solution, but I see

          9  that in your testimony, the Administration's stance

         10  is to agree in principle with this bill and then you

         11  have a series of specific concerns, all of which

         12  look like they are practical and potentially can be

         13  acted on.

         14                 But I'm saying do you agree

         15  philosophically that in the absence of a clear

         16  indication of federal or State legislation on the

         17  immediate horizon, that we need to prepare to act as

         18  a City ourselves?

         19                 MR. LANGE: I guess philosophically,

         20  yes. Again, awaiting the outcome of the next

         21  legislative session, which as we went over already

         22  is the next two years.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: Right. Well,

         24  I would just say respectful of our witness, Mr.

         25  Chairman, I have a difference on that point right
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          2  there, and I think -- I don't think we have that

          3  luxury. I think we could quantify this problem, it's

          4  a huge problem to begin with. It's growing all the

          5  time, proliferation of different types of

          6  electronics and equipment, and I think we found in

          7  many other fields of endeavor, that federal

          8  government and City government put off action almost

          9  indefinitely, and I would urge us to move forward,

         10  especially in light of the fact that now the overall

         11  stage is set by the achievement of the Solid Waste

         12  Management Plan, that it's time for action in this

         13  legislation session of ours and then our action can

         14  only be improved upon by additional action at the

         15  State or federal level. But I just want to put down

         16  the marker right here.

         17                 And Mr. Chairman, I imagine we're

         18  kindred on this point, we have waited long enough

         19  and it makes sense to move forward aggressively on

         20  this.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: No, I agree. And

         23  I pursued similar questions with Mr. Lange, and I

         24  think we did agree with the Administration to do

         25  this, and now the only question will be how long is
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          2  appropriate to wait for action from our colleagues

          3  in Albany and Washington and whether nor not there

          4  is hope to that, and that way our next witness will

          5  really enlighten us on that. So, thank you.

          6                 Any other questions from my

          7  colleagues? We're joined by Council Member Andrew

          8  Lanza, an e-waste proponent for recycling from

          9  Staten Island. We welcome him. And Mr. Lange, we

         10  thank you.

         11                 MR. LANGE: Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Thanks.

         13                 Okay, our next panel, Assemblyman

         14  William Colton from Brooklyn, who is the Chair of

         15  the New York State Assembly Legislative Commission

         16  on Solid Waste Management: Megan Shane from Borough

         17  President Scott Stringer's Office; and Rona Cohen,

         18  from the Council of State Governments, Eastern

         19  Regional Conference.

         20                 When you settle, Assemblyman Colton,

         21  I'll ask you to begin, and then we'll move from your

         22  right to your left -- from our right, no. That way.

         23  Thank you.

         24                 ASSEMBLYMAN COLTON: I appreciate the

         25  invitation from this Council Committee, and I really
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          2  applaud the work that you are doing, in terms of

          3  introducing this proposed legislation on a local

          4  level, and the work that you have done in terms of

          5  promoting the importance of this issue.

          6                 As you're well aware, and as the

          7  bill, the resolution itself clearly delineates, the

          8  proper management of unwanted electronic equipment

          9  has become a major issue, not only here in New York

         10  City, but throughout the entire country. And this

         11  issue has been one of my top priorities, as Chair of

         12  the Assembly's Legislative Commission on Solid Waste

         13  Management.

         14                 There have been a number of notable

         15  efforts in New York to foster electronic equipment

         16  recycling. We saw one recently in the events that

         17  were scheduled, collecting electronic equipment.

         18  We've also seen various groups, including Per

         19  Scholas in the Bronx, Waste Management and Recycling

         20  in Glenville, New York, Regional Computer Recycling

         21  in Victor, and Goodwill Industries in Watkins Glen.

         22  All of these organizations have scheduled events,

         23  and they have done computer recycling, and they've

         24  provided jobs and economic development to the

         25  community.
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          2                 In addition to the environmental

          3  benefits or proper electronic management, last year

          4  the New York State Office of General Services

          5  approved a proposal by the New York State Industries

          6  for the Disabled, to run three pilot electronic

          7  recycling programs, using their clientele. However,

          8  there is a need to do much, much more.

          9                 And this is why I applaud the

         10  sponsors of Introduction 104 for their initiative in

         11  addressing this concern. I believe it is beneficial

         12  and fully appropriate for the City Council to

         13  establish an electronic recovery system in New York

         14  City.

         15                 The proposed law would provide a

         16  sound basis for recycling, and managing electronic

         17  equipment waste generated in the City. And most

         18  importantly, I enthusiastically support the concept

         19  of produce a responsibility, which is the basis of

         20  this proposed local legislation. I believe that

         21  provides the most equitable and effective means of

         22  properly managing this growing waste segment.

         23                 I think it also becomes critical

         24  because I think what we are going to see in New York

         25  City is what is also being seen in localities

                                                            36

          1  SANITATION AND SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT

          2  throughout New York State, which is that the cost of

          3  managing solid waste is mushrooming, and it is going

          4  to be taking away from the monies that are going to

          5  be needed, education and health care and all the

          6  other essential needs that people in a locality

          7  have, and I believe that this legislation will begin

          8  to address that, and begin to shift the

          9  responsibility for that, in this case, for

         10  electronic recycling on the manufacturers.

         11                 So, I believe the producer

         12  responsibility approach is a very important one, not

         13  only from the sense of fairness but also from the

         14  sense of saving our local taxpayers a tremendous

         15  burden that otherwise they are going to be facing if

         16  they don't deal with this properly.

         17                 I have several comments regarding

         18  proposed Introduction 104. The proposal correctly

         19  gives each manufacturer the option to implement its

         20  own recycling program, the requirement to set up a

         21  recycling program, and it gives it the option to

         22  collaborate with other manufacturers and other

         23  companies in a joint recycling program. I think this

         24  is very appropriate.

         25                 However, you may consider an option
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          2  in terms of financing the share of a

          3  government-administered program, now that might be

          4  very difficult on a local level, frankly, this is

          5  where this kind of a legislation would work

          6  hand-in-hand in any State Legislation that might be

          7  passed.

          8                 The bills that I have introduced

          9  basically would set up a program whereby there would

         10  be an option for each manufacturer to set up its own

         11  plan, and that works hand-in-hand with what is in

         12  accord with this particular local legislation, and

         13  then it would provide a state-run option for those

         14  manufacturers who chose not to set up their own

         15  plan. That State-run program or administered

         16  program, the cost of it would not be born by the

         17  localities or by State government, but the

         18  manufacturers who chose not to implement their own

         19  plan would have to bear a share, a fair

         20  proportionate share of the cost of recycling those

         21  materials that were collected by the State-run, the

         22  Department plan.

         23                 Second, the idea of setting up a

         24  minimum collection rate has, definitely has merit.

         25  There may be some problems in terms of the practical
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          2  administration of it.

          3                 One thing that you might look at in

          4  terms of this legislation is considering the life

          5  span of particular product categories in

          6  establishing a minimum collection rate.

          7                 For example, if a personal computer

          8  has an average life span of five years, 50 percent

          9  of those products could be expected to have reached

         10  their end of life after five years.

         11                 You might look at the possibility of

         12  factoring that into how you use that with your

         13  minimum collection rate.

         14                 Finally, I think that one of the

         15  things that needs to be considered is, how do we

         16  deal with the recycling of often waste? The cost of

         17  it is clearly going to be, according to this

         18  legislation, and correctly so, prorated among the

         19  various manufacturers. There may be an issue in

         20  terms of who will actually do the recycling of this

         21  often waste; will it be done by manufacturers and

         22  will they then be reimbursed?

         23                 So, you may need to look at the

         24  mechanism in terms of handling the often waste that

         25  may come into the system, whether each individual
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          2  manufacturer will be recycling that, as part of its

          3  plan and then will be reimbursed for that from the

          4  other manufacturers, or how that should be dealt

          5  with.

          6                 Clearly, it would be most

          7  advantageous to establish an electronics recycling

          8  program on a federal level. Everybody agrees with

          9  that. There is no question about it. If it's not

         10  done on a federal level, then clearly we need to do

         11  it on a State level or a local level. I don't think

         12  we can wait indefinitely in order to do this. I

         13  think what happens very often in government is that

         14  government tends to wait until there is an emergency

         15  crisis and then it adopts band-aid approaches. And I

         16  applaud the Council for having the foresight of

         17  beginning to deal with this now on the contingency

         18  that if the federal government or the State

         19  government fails to deal with the problem, the

         20  Council will have a back-up program to protect the

         21  taxpayers in the City of New York, so that they will

         22  not be subjected to some kind of a band-aid

         23  approach, or to mushrooming costs of the disposal of

         24  these materials.

         25                 Federal policy options discussed in
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          2  recent years at numerous electronic stakeholder

          3  meetings have failed to gain sufficient support,

          4  especially in regard to the financing of electronic

          5  recycling. That's one of the reasons why I have been

          6  pushing very hard on a state level to address

          7  electronics recovery at a state level.

          8                 Some states have already dealt with

          9  this - Maine, California, Maryland and Washington -

         10  have enacted laws regarding these activities.

         11                 I have initiated and organized and

         12  participated in workshops and roundtables to

         13  encourage discussion of this issue and to try to

         14  reach some consensus on it.

         15                 One of the most successful

         16  initiatives has been a project that has been

         17  spearheaded by the Council of State Governments, the

         18  Eastern Regional Conference, in coordination with

         19  the Northeast Recycling Council.

         20                 Their effort, which I participated

         21  in, evolved from a concern that federal action for

         22  electronics recovery was unlikely, and that State or

         23  regional actions might force national dialogue.

         24                 The process to develop a model basis

         25  -- the process to develop a model legislation for
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          2  potential adoption by the ten Northeast Regional

          3  States began in 2005. Many legislators and local

          4  state environmental staff contributed to that

          5  effort, and as a result of it, two bills emerged in

          6  New York, which directly came as a result of that

          7  effort of the Northeast Council and of the Council

          8  of State Governments.

          9                 In a short while you'll be hearing

         10  Rona Cohen, Senior Policy Analyst for the Council of

         11  State Governments, describing the projects and the

         12  resulting model legislation that came forth from it.

         13                 Rona has been the principle,

         14  consistent and patient force behind the successful

         15  completion of that project.

         16                 To further our regional efforts this

         17  session, I introduced two major bills in the

         18  Assembly which would require manufacturers to take

         19  back their share of covered electronic equipment

         20  under a State program. One bill bases the

         21  manufacturer's share of financial responsibility on

         22  its percentage on weight of annual sales of covered

         23  electronics in the State.

         24                 The second bill bases the

         25  manufacturer's share of the percentage by a weight
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          2  of the annual returns of covered electronic products

          3  in the State. Both of these bills would require each

          4  manufacturer to pay a registration fee and then

          5  would give each manufacturer the option of either

          6  running their own program to collect, handle and

          7  recycle their determined return or market share, or,

          8  two, paying an additional fee to fund a

          9  state-administered plan to collect, handle and

         10  recycle the electronic equipment for their share.

         11                 These fees will provide direct

         12  support for all program costs, including the

         13  collection of often products. So, it would not be

         14  our desire, or I think correct to in any way try to

         15  impose these costs upon a locality. I think that

         16  would be a mistake, and I would not support that.

         17                 I think that the true producer

         18  responsibility approach has got to cover the cost of

         19  these programs. Both of these bills evolved from my

         20  commitment to produce a responsibility concept and

         21  from my participation in the CSG process. Because

         22  the issue of how to finance the program and the cost

         23  of the program proved to be a rather difficult and

         24  contentious one, I have put forward both the market

         25  share and the return share proposals. And it's my
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          2  hope that one of these bills will gain sufficient

          3  support among the various stakeholder groups to

          4  secure its passage.

          5                 Although neither bill reached the

          6  Assembly floor in this past session, the return

          7  share bill was favorably reported out of the

          8  Environmental Conservation Committee. So that bill

          9  did go out.

         10                 The market share bill was also

         11  introduced in the Senate, and that was favorably

         12  reported out of the Senate's Environmental

         13  Committee.

         14                 Now, one of the reasons, one of the

         15  difficulties here is determining what the financing

         16  mechanism is, and one of the rationales for

         17  introducing two bills, one market share and one

         18  return share, is that I believe in New York State,

         19  in order to get statewide legislation passed, it is

         20  necessary to get some support from within all of the

         21  stakeholder groups. All right, there is support from

         22  many people from the recyclers groups, from the

         23  consumer group, from the retailers, for both these

         24  bills.

         25                 The problem has been that the
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          2  manufacturers have been steadfastly opposed to State

          3  legislation. The return share bill came about as a

          4  result of very extensive negotiations with Hewlett

          5  Packard and certain manufacturers that they have

          6  worked in conjunction with, and we were able to get

          7  them to come out and publicly support the return

          8  share legislation. That's one of the reasons why we

          9  did both. Because I felt that we had to have some

         10  kind of support from the manufacturer stakeholder

         11  group in order to have a chance for passing.

         12                 We look forward to, in our continuing

         13  discussions with all manufacturers, and we hope that

         14  we can get a consensus, in terms of some of the

         15  issues that have caused divisions and have caused

         16  disagreements in terms of this legislation, and I

         17  think that hopefully, you know, that will happen

         18  this year.

         19                 There can be no guarantee, however,

         20  that in this year or in the two-year session, in

         21  fact the State will pass legislation, and if it does

         22  not pass it, we will be faced, New York City, and

         23  the other localities will be faced with a potential

         24  crisis, because what will be happening in the next

         25  few years is that many hundreds -- maybe even
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          2  millions of televisions will be disposed of. As we

          3  convert, as the television system converts, all

          4  right, many of these older televisions, instead of

          5  being converted, instead of money being spent on

          6  converting them so that they will work under the new

          7  technology that is going to be implemented, may end

          8  up being put out in the garbage, and if that

          9  happens, the taxpayers, the localities, are going to

         10  be faced with the cost of disposing of them. They

         11  are large, they are bulky, and they do contain

         12  elements, components, which could be considered

         13  toxic if they end up in landfills or even worst,

         14  incineration.

         15                 So, this, you know, is a deadline

         16  which is not going to keep getting put back

         17  indefinitely. It's going to come about at some

         18  point, and individuals are going to begin to act

         19  upon it, and my fear is that if we don't begin to

         20  set up a system in place, then we may face an

         21  emergency which will require band-aid approach

         22  legislation.

         23                 So, that's one of the reasons why I

         24  very strongly support and applaud the City Council

         25  effort in this resolution and in the discussions
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          2  that they've had in attempting to bring about local

          3  legislation on this level.

          4                 There is some -- one of the problems

          5  on a Statewide level is the issue of the financing.

          6  All right, that is not as serious a problem in your

          7  local bill as it would be on a statewide bill.

          8                 Determining the amount of sales is a

          9  factor. And I heard the testimony of the official

         10  from the Department of Sanitation, the concern that

         11  they will get accurate data in order to determine

         12  the market sales. There are ways of dealing with

         13  that.

         14                 One of the problems is that the

         15  manufacturers state that either they cannot or more

         16  likely they do not want to reveal the actual

         17  marketshare data. It might present problems for

         18  them, but from a proprietary point of view, as well

         19  as a logistical point of view. But there are ways of

         20  getting around that, and one of the ways, you know,

         21  you could either do it with a market share approach,

         22  by using national surveys information, the best

         23  information available, or it could be done by

         24  switching to the return share approach, where you

         25  don't need to calculate the actual market share,
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          2  where in fact what you do is you would do a

          3  statistical sampling of the actual returns that

          4  particular year, and determine the actual percentage

          5  or pro rate share for each manufacturer based upon

          6  the actual returns that were made. Both have

          7  advantages and disadvantages, and, you know, we'll

          8  see how the manufacturers jump into this and which

          9  they are willing to support and therefore which is

         10  capable of being passed.

         11                 But the important thing is, we need

         12  to have a producer responsibility bill. I intend to

         13  push forward with the introduction, the

         14  reintroduction of both these bills in 2007.

         15  Obviously the elections that are coming up may have

         16  an effect upon that. There will be a new Governor in

         17  New York State no matter who wins, and there will be

         18  possible changes in Senate leadership, which may

         19  affect the Assembly's ability to forge a three-way

         20  agreement.

         21                 In addition to the major electronic

         22  recycling initiatives I've already addressed. We've

         23  also introduced an additional electronic recycling

         24  bill. One bill that has passed the senate basically

         25  -- which has passed the Assembly, rather, which
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          2  basically seeks to set up the infrastructure for

          3  electronic recycling by encouraging programs and

          4  municipalities to participate in programs, to

          5  sponsor some of these special events.

          6                 That is a very preliminary primitive

          7  bill. We really need something more definitive, and

          8  that's why I've introduced the other two bills. That

          9  bill also has not moved in the Senate.

         10                 Finally, I would basically like to

         11  indicate that I would encourage you to move forward

         12  on this piece of legislation, and I would encourage

         13  you to continue in the direction that you're going,

         14  which is producer responsibility, you know, I would

         15  certainly encourage you to enter into a dialogue

         16  with the manufacturers, the recyclers, the

         17  consumers, all the different stakeholder groups, and

         18  to see if there is any twitting or changes that can

         19  be made to the legislation to make it more capable

         20  of being passed, as we are going to do on the

         21  Statewide level.

         22                 But I really think that it is

         23  important that you proceed forward on the local

         24  level, and I don't think that what you are proposing

         25  here would be contradictory to what we are moving
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          2  forward on the State level.

          3                 If we were to pass either of the two

          4  bills that I have introduced on a State level, or

          5  some version of those two bills, I think what you

          6  are moving forward on would fit very well into that

          7  plan. I think it could be done.

          8                 For example, the two State bills both

          9  require manufacturers to come up with a plan for

         10  recycling their electronic-covered products. The

         11  only difference is that the State bills, both of

         12  them, set up a state-run mechanism, which would

         13  recycle the material and bill the manufacturers who

         14  do not want to set up their own proposal, would then

         15  require them to share in the cost of recycling the

         16  materials that this State-run program would

         17  basically take in and deal with. So, I don't think

         18  what you're doing is contradictory to that. And I

         19  think if we were to pass State legislation, this

         20  might very well fit in very well, work with that and

         21  fit into that, with very few changes being

         22  necessary, maybe no changes.

         23                 So, I would encourage you to continue

         24  this effort, and I certainly look forward to working

         25  together with you closely so that we can begin to
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          2  deal with this critical problem of how are we going

          3  to dispose of this electronic waste, which is

          4  becoming an increasingly large amount of our waste

          5  stream, and which is becoming increasingly expensive

          6  to deal with.

          7                 So, with that I would basically close

          8  my testimony and congratulate you on these hearings

          9  and on your efforts.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Thank you. And

         12  the same to you, Assemblyman, thank you for being a

         13  statewide leader on this and other solid waste

         14  issues and for your input through the years, and

         15  your leadership as well.

         16                 We've been joined by our colleague

         17  from the Bronx, Mr. Larry Seabrook, and I'd like to

         18  move to the next witness and then we'll come back

         19  for questions of the whole panel.

         20                 MS. SHANE: Good afternoon, Chair

         21  McMahon, members of the Committee. My name is Megan

         22  Shane. I am here today to share with you the views

         23  of Manhattan Borough President Scott Stringer, who

         24  could not be here today. I am the Borough

         25  President's Deputy Policy Director, as well as his
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          2  advisor on environmental issues.

          3                 I want to thank you for the

          4  opportunity to testify in support of Intro. 104,

          5  legislation that would require electronic

          6  manufacturers to accept unused and unwanted

          7  electronics from New York City consumers, and either

          8  recycle or reuse those products.

          9                 Intro. 104 is a critical step toward

         10  reducing toxic materials in our waste stream and our

         11  ambient environment.

         12                 By introducing cradle-to-grave

         13  accountability for manufacturers and empowering

         14  citizens to conveniently recycle unwanted

         15  electronics, the bill would set ground-breaking

         16  standards for e-waste management in New York City.

         17                 Currently, the bulk of our e-waste is

         18  managed through traditional methods of landfill

         19  disposal and incineration. According to the US

         20  Environmental Protection Agency, approximately 70

         21  percent of heavy metals present in landfills come

         22  from e-waste. This statistic points to grave public

         23  health threats. Consumer electronics contain many

         24  toxic materials, including lead, mercury, cadmium

         25  and polyvinyl chloride, which are variously linked
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          2  to cancer, nervous system disorders, endocrine

          3  disruption and other health risks.

          4                 When these materials are encased in

          5  plastic, sitting on a coffee table, they are of

          6  course benign. But when electronics are dumped or

          7  burned, the same toxic materials contaminate our

          8  water and air, leaving people vulnerable to

          9  exposure.

         10                 Intro. 104's key provision is to

         11  limit this exposure by requiring manufacturers to

         12  safely recycle post-consumer products rather than

         13  allowing them to be landfilled or burned.

         14                 Intro. 104 follows a growing number

         15  of innovative e-waste recycling models that call on

         16  manufacturers to assume the environmental and public

         17  health costs of their products.

         18                 I applaud Council Member DeBlasio for

         19  proposing e-waste recycling standards that hinge on

         20  manufacturer responsibility, since effective

         21  producers will have to recycling their own

         22  electronics, they'll have a cost incentive to reduce

         23  harmful waste products at the point of production,

         24  rather than waiting until the point of disposal to

         25  pay for their processing.
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          2                 As time passes, this will result in

          3  more sustainable product design and less toxic waste

          4  for any given volume of electronics.

          5                 There is one serious point of caution

          6  regarding the development of manufacturer-based

          7  recycling and reuse systems that I would like to

          8  address. Given the high cost of electronics,

          9  disassembly and the processing of hazardous

         10  components, many e-waste recyclers find it lucrative

         11  to send equipment overseas. Equipment that is sent

         12  abroad intended for recycling or reuse is often

         13  mismanaged and results in labor and safety concerns,

         14  local health risks and environment contamination.

         15                 I would like to stress the importance

         16  of developing prescriptive language within Intro

         17  104's manufacturer and performance standard that

         18  would prevent the City's e-waste from contributing

         19  to this problem.

         20                 It is imperative that we manage our

         21  e-waste locally, rather than pushing the problem

         22  onto vulnerable populations beyond our borders.

         23  E-waste is growing an estimated three times the rate

         24  of the rest of our municipal waste stream. As the

         25  rate of technological advancement increases, so does
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          2  the rate of product obsolescence and market

          3  pressures for consumer disposal. Given that, the

          4  problem of e-waste will only become more pressing

          5  for the City of New York, and it is essential that

          6  we move quickly to enact a local management

          7  framework.

          8                 In conclusion, I strongly support

          9  Intro. 104 as an effective way to manage our City's

         10  e-waste, protect public health and the environment,

         11  and ensure that electronics manufacturers account

         12  for the external costs of their products. I would

         13  like to qualify my support by repeating the

         14  importance of amending the bill's performance

         15  standard to include language that prohibits the sale

         16  or trade of used equipment overseas.

         17                 Thank you for allowing me to comment

         18  on this issue. I look forward to working with the

         19  City Council, consumer and advocacy groups, and the

         20  Department of Sanitation to realize this important

         21  role.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Thank you. And

         23  please thank the Borough President for sending that

         24  important message.

         25                 Ms. Cohen.
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          2                 MS. COHEN: Thank you. Good afternoon,

          3  Chairman McMahon and members of the Committee. It's

          4  a pleasure to be here today to talk to you about our

          5  efforts at the Council of State Governments Eastern

          6  Regional Conference to address the proliferation of

          7  e-waste in our region.

          8                 From February of 2005 to April of

          9  2006, CSGERC, in collaboration with the Northeast

         10  Recycling Council, facilitated a dialogue among

         11  legislators from ten states in the Northeastern US

         12  with the goal of creating model legislation

         13  governing end of life electronics management that

         14  can be filed in each of the participating states.

         15                 As part of this dialogue, CSG and ERC

         16  hosted two multi-stakeholder meetings and additional

         17  single stakeholder meetings that brought together

         18  more than 50 legislators, legislative staff and

         19  environmental agencies solid waste management staff

         20  and more than 100 different stakeholders to hear

         21  their suggestions regarding key elements of

         22  potential electronics legislation.

         23                 In April of this year, CSG and ERC

         24  released model legislation that reflected the

         25  consensus of the State legislators that participated
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          2  in the project.

          3                 The legislation requires

          4  manufacturers of computers and TVs to take full

          5  financial responsibility for the collection,

          6  transportation, and recycling of their products that

          7  are sold to individual consumers in the State.

          8                 To date the legislation has been

          9  filed in four states, including, as you know, New

         10  York State. CSG/ERC supports general producer

         11  responsibility approach, that's contained in

         12  Introduction 104. I would like to offer the

         13  Committee three recommendations for ways to improve

         14  the legislation, and one observation regarding some

         15  of the feedback that we received from various

         16  stakeholders concerning our effort that the

         17  Committee may find useful going forward.

         18                 First, it is unclear as to whether

         19  Introduction 104 would calculate a manufacturer's

         20  collection rate based on weight or unit sales. CSG

         21  urges the Committee to consider using weight, not

         22  units, as a basis for this calculation. And this is

         23  because the weight of different items in any given

         24  category can vary significantly among products and

         25  brands.
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          2                 Additionally, since recycling

          3  payments are performed on a weight basis, a

          4  manufacturer's collection rate should also be based

          5  on weight in this case, on a percentage of the

          6  weight of its market share.

          7                 A weight-based approach could also

          8  provide an incentive to manufacturers to develop

          9  later products using fewer materials, which is

         10  considered an important component of green design.

         11                 Second, the minimum manufacturer

         12  collection rates starting in Year 2015 will likely

         13  exceed the total quantity of covered electronic

         14  devices, collected for recycling any given year.

         15  Hence, the minimum collection rates will likely be

         16  unattainable. We recommend that the collection rate

         17  be modified so that they correspond to the quantity

         18  o actual returns in any given year.

         19                 The legislation proposes a minimum

         20  collection rate of 30 percent of sales by 2010,

         21  rising to 55 percent by 2015, and 80 percent by

         22  2018.

         23                 Data obtained by CSG and ERC suggest

         24  that based on current available information in any

         25  given year, the total amount of products collected
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          2  for recycling is likely to be much smaller than the

          3  total quantity sold.

          4                 For example, an analysis of

          5  collection and sales data from Hennepin County,

          6  Minnesota, which has the oldest and largest

          7  electronics collection program in the US, shows that

          8  approximately 28 percent of what is sold each year

          9  by weight is being collected for recycling.

         10                 Similarly, data from California shows

         11  that the quantity of TVs, computer monitors and

         12  laptops collected for recycling in 2004 represented

         13  approximately 29 percent of the quantity sold.

         14                 In an effort to ensure that

         15  manufacturer collection rated accurately correspond

         16  to the quantity of covered devices in the waste

         17  stream, the CSG and ERC model establishes what we

         18  call a State recycling rate which is defined as the

         19  ratio of the weight of total overall returns of

         20  covered devices in a state to the weight of total

         21  overall sales of covered electronic devices in the

         22  state during a previous calendar year. And the

         23  resulting percentage or recycling rate or collection

         24  rate would then be multiplied by each manufacturer's

         25  annual sales data to determine its responsibility
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          2  for collection and recycling.

          3                 I'd like to additionally note that

          4  this calculation obviates the need to address orphan

          5  products, since all returns regardless of brand or

          6  lack thereof are included in the calculation.

          7                 And third, the requirement that the

          8  Department calculate a manufacturer's pro rata share

          9  of orphan waste will likely create unnecessary cost

         10  and logistical burdens. This is because prior to

         11  determining a manufacturer's pro rata share of

         12  orphan waste, electronics end of life management

         13  programs must first determine the entire quantity of

         14  orphans in the waste stream. The most common methods

         15  for doing so are by either performing periodic

         16  statistical sampling of all collective items by

         17  brand, or by manually counting each covered

         18  electronic device that is collected for recycling

         19  and recording its brand into a database as occurs

         20  under Maine's program.

         21                 Such practices which are usually

         22  characteristic of return share end of life

         23  management programs, in other words, programs that

         24  calculate a manufacturer's financial responsibility

         25  based on its share of overall returns, not sales,
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          2  are costly and logistically burdensome.

          3                 It's unclear as to whether this

          4  legislation would make use of such practices to

          5  determine the overall quantity of orphans in the

          6  waste stream, however, given that under the

          7  legislation a manufacturer's financial

          8  responsibility is determined by its overall sales,

          9  not its overall returns of covered electronic

         10  devices.

         11                 Any requirement for the calculation

         12  of orphans would appear to create unnecessary

         13  financial costs, in addition to logistical

         14  challenges.

         15                 CSG urges the Committee to review the

         16  recycling rate contained in the CSG and ERC model,

         17  which I described earlier and which appears in

         18  greater detail in the documents included with this

         19  testimony.

         20                 The rate ensures that all covered

         21  electronic devices in the waste stream are processed

         22  for recycling, including all orphans, without

         23  necessitating any calculation of orphan waste.

         24                 And finally, I'd like to offer you

         25  one observation regarding some of the feedback that
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          2  we received in our effort for manufacturers

          3  regarding an issue that has already been mentioned

          4  several times regarding obtaining manufacturer sales

          5  data.

          6                 The CSG and ERC model, like this

          7  legislation, calculates a manufacturer's obligation

          8  of collection rate based on a percentage of its

          9  market share. Many manufacturers, as you know, will

         10  say that they do not possess state-specific sales

         11  data for their products and that it cannot be

         12  obtained.

         13                 In an effort to facilitate the

         14  collection of such data, earlier this year a trade

         15  association that represents several national retail

         16  chains expressed support for a reporting requirement

         17  in which retailers would provide data on their sales

         18  of covered electronic devices in a state directly to

         19  manufacturers or suppliers.

         20                 Under such an arrangement, suppliers

         21  would be required to then remit the data, to remit

         22  the data to manufacturers and manufacturers would

         23  report the data directly to the administering state

         24  agency. The Committee may wish to consider including

         25  this retailer reporting requirement in the draft
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          2  electronics legislation.

          3                 Thank you very much for providing me

          4  with this opportunity to discuss our project with

          5  you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Thank you all

          7  very much. That was very enlightening. We have been

          8  joined by Councilman Jim Gennaro from Queens. And,

          9  again, I thank you, Ms. Cohen, very much for your

         10  guidance and enlightenment. It gave us a lot to

         11  think about, and let the Borough President know that

         12  we appreciate you coming as well.

         13                 And Assemblyman, I think the one

         14  question I have for you, I think you answered, which

         15  is if we were to move forward with this bill, the

         16  action in Albany, would we stand in the way of that,

         17  or could the two systems work together, and you

         18  addressed that pretty well.

         19                 ASSEMBLYMAN COLTON: We definitely

         20  could work together, and I certainly would encourage

         21  you to move forward.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Okay. Thank you

         23  all very much.

         24                 Council Member DeBlasio and then

         25  Council Member Brewer.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: Okay, very

          3  quickly. First of all, I want to say, and Ms. Cohen

          4  gave tremendously helpful recommendations, and thank

          5  you. It's nice to have friends looking at the bigger

          6  picture and helping us have other perspectives and

          7  Megan -- what's your last name, please?

          8                 MS. SHANE: Shane.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: Shane. We

         10  thank you, Ms. Shane, for bringing about the

         11  international ramifications. I think it's very

         12  helpful, and helps us be mindful as we're going

         13  through the final process with this bill. And,

         14  finally, Assemblymember, first of all, thank you for

         15  your leadership on this issue. And I dare say you

         16  have a harder venue in which to work than we do for

         17  a lot of reasons.

         18                 And just one other clarification on

         19  top of the one by Chair McMahon, I thought you were

         20  extremely noble to say as much as you're working

         21  very, very hard to get everything done in the

         22  Legislature, you're telling us not to wait, not to

         23  hold up, and keep doing our work here. I appreciate

         24  that. Obvious, it's not about turf for you, it's

         25  about getting the job done for our communities.
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          2                 I think I interpret your testimony to

          3  say there is hope, depending on certain factors,

          4  there is hope of more action rather than less

          5  action, but there's just no guarantees, especially

          6  with two disparate houses of the Legislature and new

          7  Governor, so that we should be backing you up every

          8  step of the way to try and get action in Albany, but

          9  it's very hard to predict any time lines or any

         10  outcomes at this point.

         11                 ASSEMBLYMAN COLTON: That's correct.

         12  And that your efforts are in fact helpful, rather

         13  than not helpful to bringing about a Statewide

         14  result.

         15                 I think your efforts moving forward

         16  may help bring about a Statewide result or a federal

         17  result even, so I would encourage you to continue.

         18  And I implore the work that you have done, in terms

         19  of this resolution, this Introduction 643.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: Thank you.

         21                 And thank you very much, Mr. Chair.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Council Member

         23  Brewer, and then Council Member Lanza.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you.

         25                 For Ms. Cohen, first of all, thank
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          2  you for summarizing also, really appreciate it.

          3                 My question is, in the sense that you

          4  convened, again, I'm going back to this issue of we

          5  don't have a car, in urban areas, at least like New

          6  York, really schlepping the waste is half of the

          7  problem. So, my question is, did any of the states

          8  that convened, or any of the representatives live in

          9  sort of urban areas, was there anybody from this

         10  City? And the second question is, I think it's a

         11  very commendable goal for both the legislation and

         12  for some of your efforts to try to get the

         13  manufacturers. But I mean, simply would be to ask

         14  that the manufacturers are public/private

         15  partnership, to have some kind of truck come through

         16  the neighborhoods and pick up the waste, was that

         17  ever discussed, or was that too simplistic?

         18                 MS. COHEN: Well, first of all, in

         19  terms of whether or not there was anyone from this

         20  City participating, Assemblyman Colton was a very

         21  active participant in this effort from the

         22  beginning, and we're grateful for his leadership.

         23                 In terms of collection, when we

         24  started this project, we polled all of the State

         25  environmental agencies solid waste management staff
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          2  in our region about what should be done in terms of

          3  many aspects of e-waste legislation, and one of the

          4  things that they stressed is that the local

          5  infrastructure should be used as much as possible.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: What does that

          7  mean?

          8                 MS. COHEN: It means the local

          9  collection for solid waste should be used as much as

         10  possible, as long as that infrastructure was

         11  available to a minimum of 85 percent of state's

         12  population.

         13                 And they also stress that the

         14  legislation should not become an unfunded mandate

         15  for the State's municipalities, and that's why they

         16  were pretty forceful about the notion that the

         17  manufacturer should cover all collection costs.

         18                 In other words, they said don't make

         19  a duplicitous effort, don't create another system

         20  for collection, if what's in place is working, but

         21  make sure that those costs are paid for.

         22                 There would also be flexibility built

         23  into the system for private haulers to participate,

         24  if they wish to.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: So what you're
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          2  saying is whatever the method is. It could be the

          3  one that I suggest and some kind of public/private

          4  partnership.

          5                 MS. COHEN: Absolutely.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: But it would

          7  not be an unfunded mandate. Okay, thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Council Member

          9  Lanza.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA: Thank you,

         11  Chairman. And let me take this opportunity to thank

         12  you, Chairman McMahon, for your leadership on this

         13  and other recycling efforts for this City. Certainly

         14  this is a timely discussion, given the proliferation

         15  of electronic devices and equipment, and/or our

         16  dependency upon them in society.

         17                 My question is, and I want to thank

         18  the panel as well for being here and offering the

         19  testimony, my question is for Ms. Cohen. How did you

         20  decide on the charges to the manufacturers, the

         21  $5,000 up-front fee and the 50 cents per ton?

         22                 MS. COHEN: The 5,000, I would say

         23  that was more or less sort of a -- it was arbitrary.

         24  It was sort of a minimal fee that the group felt

         25  would be necessary to cover the costs, the basic
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          2  administrative costs of the program, based on data

          3  that they've seen from other states. Of course, that

          4  could be changed, depending on what the State agency

          5  chose to do, in terms of we have reimbursement rate

          6  of no more than 50 cents per pound. That came from

          7  looking at the reimbursement rates in Maine and

          8  California, which is 48 cents per pound, 28 cents

          9  would go to the recycler and 20 cents to the

         10  collector. And, so, there was a general feeling that

         11  it probably should be in that ball park, based on

         12  the information that we're seeing right now about

         13  cost, if they built in a cushion of say two more

         14  cents per pound, but they felt pretty strongly that

         15  it shouldn't go higher than that.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA: So, I take it,

         17  and of course, let me say from the outset it's

         18  understandable if we don't have an answer to this

         19  question, but do I take from your answer that we

         20  don't have a precise analysis of the exact cost of

         21  the program and therefore, you know, given your

         22  answer that it's somewhat arbitrary, but this $5,000

         23  fee would go toward --

         24                 MS. COHEN: Covering administrative

         25  costs.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA: Which we don't

          3  have a good handle on.

          4                 MS. COHEN: Not yet.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA: Okay, thank

          6  you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Thank you all

          8  very much for coming, and we look forward to working

          9  with you all. Thank you.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: Mr.

         11  Chairman, can we get a copy of the Borough President

         12  testimony? Because it wasn't given to us.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: If you could

         14  hand these to the Sergeant-At-Arms. Thank you.

         15                 Okay, the next panel is Yerina Mugica

         16  from NRDC; Matt Prindiville from Natural Resources

         17  Council of Maine; Ted Smith, from SVTC/CTRC; and

         18  Ramon Cruz, from the Environmental Defense Fund.

         19                 And the next panel will be Robert

         20  Straniere from NYMRA; Justin Wright from AEA; Frank

         21  Marella from Sharp Electronics; and Parker Brugge

         22  from the Consumer Electronics Association.

         23                 And I don't want to resort to the

         24  buzzer and the clock, so I would ask you to be

         25  mindful if we can try in three to five minutes make
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          2  your point and then we'll go to questions, and then

          3  if a point has been raised, just kind of agree with

          4  that point and we'll try and move it along as well.

          5                 We will start this way. Mr. Cruz, you

          6  want to begin? Oh, you're together. Yerina, go

          7  ahead. You go first. Ladies first.

          8                 MS. MUGICA: Thank you, Chairman

          9  McMahon, and thank you, members of the Committee. My

         10  name is Yerina Mugica, and I'm a Research Associate

         11  with the Natural Resources Defense Council, NRDC, a

         12  national and public environmental health

         13  organization that has worked in New York City for

         14  over 30 years.

         15                 I'm pleased to be here today to

         16  provide NRDC's strong support for Intro. 104, and

         17  I'd like to highlight four key benefits of this

         18  bill.

         19                 First, Intro. 104 protects the health

         20  of Sanitation workers and removes hazardous

         21  substances from our waste stream. As we've already

         22  heard, and as we all know, electronics contain a

         23  wide range of toxic substances, including lead,

         24  mercury and cadmium. Right now, for example,

         25  electronics that are disposed of with the trash in
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          2  Manhattan are taken to the Newark incinerator and

          3  burned, which is only ten miles away from Manhattan,

          4  a distance easily traveled by mercury, dioxin and

          5  other toxic emissions that can be released from the

          6  incinerator into our air and water.

          7                 Second, this bill shifts the cost

          8  burden of handling electronic waste from taxpayers

          9  to manufacturers. New York City currently spends

         10  millions of dollars dealing with the disposal of

         11  electronic equipment each year, and we expect that

         12  this cost will only continue to rise.

         13                 This bill not only ensures that

         14  electronics are recycled and reused, it also

         15  correctly shifts the cost of handling electronic

         16  waste from City taxpayers to manufacturers of that

         17  waste.

         18                 Third, Intro. 104 allows the market

         19  to develop the most effective and efficient

         20  recycling strategies.  By setting a performance

         21  standard and then allowing industry the freedom to

         22  design take-back programs that meet these standards,

         23  Intro. 104 allows electronic companies to apply

         24  their business knowledge to develop the most

         25  effective and cost-efficient methods for collecting
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          2  and recycling electronic equipment.

          3                 In fact, a recent report from Hewlett

          4  Packard shows that they've been able to reduce their

          5  electronics recycling cost to as low as two cents

          6  per pound in Europe, where a similar law has been in

          7  place for a number of years.

          8                 Fourth, this bill creates incentives

          9  for manufacturers to make products that contain

         10  fewer toxins and are easier to recycle, and I'll

         11  just give you actually a quote from the electronic

         12  manufacturer's website, Samsung website, which says,

         13  "Producer responsibility is the critical mechanism

         14  that will incentivize manufacturers to make better

         15  products."

         16                 I think that shows that there is

         17  support among the more progressive and responsible

         18  electronic manufacturers to take responsibility for

         19  the products that they create and take those

         20  opportunities to make those products better.

         21                 I'd also like to respond to a few

         22  questions that have been raised about Intro. 104,

         23  that we have already heard today or that we may hear

         24  later today.

         25                 First, some have proposed an
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          2  alternative approach that imposes a fee on the sale

          3  of electronic goods to pay for a City-run collection

          4  and recycling of these items. We have significant

          5  concerns about this fee-based model.

          6                 First, it could adversely impact New

          7  York City retailers by essentially imposing a new

          8  task on each purchase. It also would not provide

          9  incentives for manufacturers to design better

         10  products and could lead to the creation of

         11  unnecessary bureaucracy and additional cost in New

         12  York City.

         13                 Another item that I would like to

         14  address, which Assemblymember Colton did an

         15  excellent job of explaining and of describing, so

         16  I'll only touch on it briefly, is that we really

         17  cannot wait for federal or state level legislation.

         18  While NRDC supports the electronics producer

         19  responsibility bill that's been introduced in

         20  Albany, we recognize that there is no certainty that

         21  this bill will move forward in the near future, and

         22  we certainly do not expect to see action in

         23  Washington in very near future.

         24                 So, we believe New York City needs to

         25  act now to move forward and address this problem of
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          2  electronic-based.

          3                 Lastly, I'd like to address a concern

          4  that may arise, and that I've heard, is that someone

          5  said, you know, maybe it's too difficult in New York

          6  City, we're such a highly populated area and how are

          7  we going to get these items collected, and I think

          8  that that's a very legitimate question.

          9                 And I'd like to just give one example

         10  of some forward-thinking companies already taking

         11  steps that show that they can comply with Intro.

         12  104.

         13                 Just recently Dell announced that it

         14  will take, Dell computer company announced that it

         15  will take back for free of charge of any Dell

         16  computer. Dell owners simply visit the website,

         17  print a pre-paid shipping label, schedule for free

         18  home pick-up with DHL, and this is available at no

         19  cost today.

         20                 This is just one example of a

         21  potential collection scenario that could be arranged

         22  that would comply with the New York City model.

         23  Certainly we could also increase the number and the

         24  frequency of drop off days, we can increase the

         25  locations, and I think that what we'll find is that
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          2  the business knowledge and the creativity of the

          3  market, as someone very eloquently said, I think it

          4  was Robert Lang, you know, these companies know how

          5  to get the product to us, certainly they know how to

          6  get them back, if they want to.

          7                 In conclusion, NRDC applauds this

          8  Committee and the Council for advancing one of the

          9  nation's most progressive e-recycling and reuse

         10  bills.

         11                 By enacting comprehensive legislation

         12  in this area, the Council will not only help address

         13  a real environmental and economic concern for New

         14  York City, but it will also create a model for

         15  others to follow. And I would like to bring up the

         16  trans fat bill, as you mentioned earlier, just as an

         17  example of really the power that this Council has to

         18  be a model and to really move other industries. You

         19  know, Kentucky Fried Chicken just announced today,

         20  coincidentally perhaps, that they're removing trans

         21  fats from their product line. And you know, I think

         22  that we can all look at that as something that New

         23  York City made happen, you know, down the road. So,

         24  I really applaud the Council's leadership on this,

         25  and I believe that what the City Council moves
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          2  forward really can be a model for the rest of the

          3  country.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Thank you, Ms.

          6  Mugica.

          7                 Mr. Cruz.

          8                 MR. CRUZ: Yes, good afternoon, Mr.

          9  Chairman and members of the Committee. Thank you for

         10  the opportunity to testify here today.

         11                 I have prepared testimony addressing

         12  the recycling of electronic equipment, which you

         13  should have already, but in order to speed up the

         14  process of this hearing, I will not be reading this

         15  testimony, just because many of the points coincide

         16  with those of my colleague Yerina Mugica.

         17                 But we are already in support of

         18  Intro. 104, and a model for producers'

         19  responsibility.

         20                 Do you need this? Yes? Okay.

         21                 Well, as you already know, it took

         22  several years to pass the 20-year Solid Waste

         23  Management Plan, and to pass the Solid Waste

         24  Management Plan that addresses environmental

         25  justice, borough self-sufficiency, as well as the
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          2  increasing cost of solid waste disposal, so now that

          3  we have a plan in place, it is our responsibility to

          4  continue reducing the amount of waste we send to

          5  landfill, as well as the cost of disposing it.

          6                 So, knowing the political

          7  complexities of locating waste transfer stations, as

          8  we know, and other solid-waste-related facilities,

          9  it makes so much sense to support this bill and to

         10  reduce the amount of waste, of the total waste that

         11  we produce.

         12                 So, we commend you for introducing

         13  this bill, and we look forward to work with you in

         14  the future to make this.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Thank you. Thank

         16  you very much, and thank you for your continued

         17  advocacy, as you have mentioned.

         18                 Mr. --

         19                 MR. SMITH: Smith.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Mr. Ted Smith.

         21  Thank you very much for coming, and I think you win

         22  the award for traveling the furthest for today's

         23  hearing. Mr. Smith came all the way from San Jose,

         24  California.

         25                 The floor is yours, Mr. Smith. Thank
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          2  you.

          3                 MR. SMITH: Thank you very much.

          4                 Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman, members

          5  of the Committee. I also want to applaud this

          6  Committee for taking this leadership, and I want to

          7  reiterate what Yerina just said. I heard on the

          8  radio this morning the news about the trans fat, and

          9  it just brought home to me why I think it's

         10  important to travel 3,000 miles to come to this

         11  hearing. What you folks do here has a tremendous

         12  impact all around the country, all around the world.

         13  So, I really think it's again very important and I'm

         14  very happy to be here.

         15                 I'm the founder and former Executive

         16  Director of Silicon Valley Toxics Coalition, which

         17  we formed 24 years ago, but I'm also the Chair of

         18  the National Network, called "The Computer Take-Back

         19  Campaign." We represent environmental groups,

         20  community groups, recyclers all around the country

         21  who have been working on these issues, and I just

         22  wanted to raise a few points with you.

         23                 There's been a lot of activity since

         24  I was last here a year ago. Washington State has

         25  just come into play, it's the most comprehensive of
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          2  any of the State bills, and the progression I see is

          3  that we started with California, we've gone to

          4  Maryland, Maine and now Washington State, each one I

          5  think is an improvement as we go and I'm looking to

          6  New York City as being the next step on this, and

          7  we're really looking as this could be the next

          8  model, and I think will really have an impact on

          9  Albany and Washington when they get ready to move on

         10  this.

         11                 I've included a link in my testimony

         12  to the information about the other bills that we

         13  have on our website, so it's there if you'd like to

         14  see, and we do a comparison of how we deal with the

         15  key issues that we're talking about here today. And

         16  so you can see how yours matches up to some of the

         17  other ones.

         18                 Let me give you my perspective on

         19  this progression. In California we started out with

         20  a bill that was pretty similar to what you're

         21  looking at here today, but unfortunately at the end

         22  of the session, the very last week, it got changed

         23  significantly, and it was a producer responsibility

         24  bill that ended up as a consumer fee bill, and the

         25  reason that that got changed is because of the
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          2  lobbying impact of the television industry in IBM

          3  who formed a coalition and came in and were able to

          4  change that significant part of the way the bill

          5  works. And this is done because of the fact that the

          6  television industry has the largest volume of old

          7  products that are still in people's homes. Remember,

          8  televisions have been in existence for over 50

          9  years, computers for about half that time. IBM was

         10  the original computer manufacturer so they have a

         11  huge amount of legacy waste and remember also that

         12  IBM is no longer selling consumer products. They've

         13  gone out of business, so if you do a consumer fee

         14  bill like we have in -- out of business in terms of,

         15  well they don't even sell the laptops under their

         16  own band name, it's Lenovo now that's taken over the

         17  Chinese company. So, the point is, if you adopt a

         18  consumer fee approach, IBM won't pay anything and

         19  the television industry will end up being subsidized

         20  by the computer industry which sells their products

         21  about three or four times faster, more frequently

         22  than the television and because of the shorter

         23  lifespan.

         24                 That's why I think that the

         25  California approach is so unfair. It's also
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          2  incredibly bureaucratic. It requires the retailers

          3  to collect the money at the stores, then send that

          4  up to the State, the State bureaucracy then has to

          5  process all of that money coming in. They then have

          6  to set up a mechanism for reimbursing recyclers and

          7  collectors, so there's a huge amount of overhead

          8  cost that go into that program, and I just don't

          9  think that that's the kind of program that we really

         10  need, and I want to again tell you I'm very happy

         11  that you're not considering that kind of a program,

         12  that you're considering this producer

         13  responsibility.

         14                 It's true that the California program

         15  has led to more recycling, but I don't think that

         16  that is a good enough reason because of these other

         17  counterveiling measures that I've mentioned, the

         18  transaction costs.

         19                 In my opinion, a producer

         20  responsibility which allocates responsibility on the

         21  producers according to their fair share is the most

         22  effective and most efficient and fairer way. The

         23  real question is what is the fair share. And I just

         24  wanted to address a couple of points that have come

         25  up here today.
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          2                 There are different approaches for

          3  assessing that. It can be market share, it can be

          4  return share. I mean, it might be possible to work

          5  out a combination of those, again, if you're

          6  thinking about fairness and efficiency.

          7                 If you have straight marketshare the

          8  way you do, you run into the problem that's been

          9  mentioned, that companies don't like to disclose

         10  their market share. But there are other ways of

         11  doing that. I want to assure you that you could

         12  design a system, either based on what you just heard

         13  from the Council State Governments, or there are

         14  market share analyses companies out there, private

         15  companies that publish this kind of information. You

         16  can get that kind of information, you could assess

         17  share based on their information and you could even

         18  have a provision where if a company disagreed with

         19  that they could come to you, give you their exact

         20  market share, which I guarantee you, they track

         21  very, very carefully, and then they could even give

         22  that to you under seal if they're worried about

         23  their confidential business information, which they

         24  always claim.

         25                 So, I think there are clearly ways of
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          2  getting around that.

          3                 On the other hand, there are real

          4  unfairnesses if you do only market share, because

          5  then you lose companies that are no longer doing

          6  business, the IBM problem there.

          7                 On the other hand, if you do just

          8  return share, you lose the newly entering companies,

          9  and a lot of the televisions, for instance, there's

         10  a lot of low-end TVs now coming in from Asia that

         11  don't have a historic return share, so if you do it

         12  just based on that, you lose them.

         13                 I just want you to be aware of the

         14  different ways of thinking about this, and we've

         15  played around with some language approaches that

         16  could actually combine both. If you have a high

         17  market share you go that way. If you have a high

         18  return share, you could take that into account.

         19                 So, I'm glad that this discussion is

         20  going on. I do think it's an important one.

         21                 In terms of the return logistics,

         22  again, I think that there are a variety of ways of

         23  doing that. I want to tell you, I've heard a

         24  presentation just recently by the US postal service,

         25  they are increasingly interested in becoming part of
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          2  the solution here. And the testimony I heard from

          3  them just recently was, we cover 100 percent of the

          4  neighborhoods in this country every day. We have

          5  trucks going back empty. And they see this as a

          6  revenue source. So, rather than the Dell providing

          7  the good new program that they have using DHL, maybe

          8  they can just use United States Postal Service and

          9  get a better rate. I think once you establish the

         10  rules of the game, I think then to leave it open to

         11  public/private partnerships as you mentioned,

         12  there's some real opportunities there for bringing

         13  the cost down and making the system more efficient.

         14                 The key I think is to have goals that

         15  are meaningful. It's the goals that are going to

         16  drive the system. If there are goals that the

         17  companies have to meet, then it's going to be in

         18  their interest to really develop effective and

         19  efficient programs because they're going to have to

         20  meet those goals.

         21                 Let me just close by saying, a year

         22  ago I was here saying that I didn't think it was a

         23  good idea to wait for the state governments or the

         24  federal governments, and I made the crack about that

         25  would be like waiting for Gudoh. I think that, you
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          2  know, we've moved a good ways a year ago, but I

          3  still don't think it makes sense to wait for Gudoh

          4  on this. As the Assemblyman said, I was really happy

          5  to hear that I think we are closer. Companies have

          6  moved, the governments are beginning to move, but I

          7  think that the Assemblyman got it right, that your

          8  efforts today can help move that process further

          9  along faster and in a more effective way, rather

         10  than waiting for them.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Thank you. And,

         12  again, Mr. Smith, thank you for joining us.

         13                 We have over from Agusta, Maine, Mr.

         14  Matt Prindiville, from the Natural Resources Council

         15  of Maine.

         16                 MR. PRINDIVILLE: Thank you, Chair

         17  McMahon. Honorable Committee members. My name is

         18  Matt Prindiville, and I'm the Toxics Project

         19  Director for the Natural Resources Council of Maine.

         20                 We were the lead policy organization

         21  that worked to pass Maine's electronic recycling

         22  bill in 2004, and we've been working closely with

         23  the Maine Department of Environmental Protection and

         24  the stakeholders to ensure its successful

         25  implementation.
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          2                 As I prepared testimony in support of

          3  the bill, I tried to think of what would be most

          4  pertinent to today's discussion, and given that the

          5  bill before you would create or produce a

          6  responsibility system that's very similar to Maine's

          7  system, which is currently the only producer

          8  responsibility system that's up an running in the

          9  states, I'm sure that the question on most of your

         10  minds is, is Maine's e-waste system working.

         11                 To start, I just want to describe the

         12  basic logistics of the system. Very quickly, you'll

         13  note in my testimony that I've attached a fact

         14  sheet, which lists the responsibilities of each

         15  party in greater detail.

         16                 In the main system the consumers take

         17  their e-waste to their town's chosen collection

         18  center. Municipalities then pay for the delivery of

         19  that e-waste to a consolidation facility. Now, the

         20  towns can charge a small drop-off fee if they want

         21  to cover their costs from transporting e-waste to

         22  consolidation facility.

         23                 The consolidation facilities, we have

         24  a return share system, so the consolidation

         25  facilities then count the waste household television
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          2  sets and computers by manufacturer and bill

          3  accordingly.

          4                 Some of the consolidators function as

          5  e-waste recyclers as well, some of them are partial

          6  recyclers. Those that don't recycle ship it to

          7  e-waste recyclers in New England.

          8                 Manufacturers responsible for paying

          9  the consolidators for the cost of handling

         10  transportation and the recycling, plus a pro rata

         11  share of orphan products, and that orphan share pro

         12  rata is determined by a return share of the system.

         13                 These are the basic mechanics of the

         14  system. Maine's e-waste law went into effect in

         15  January 18th of this year. From that point approved

         16  consolidation facilities have been allowed to

         17  collect and bill manufacturers for e-waste. On July

         18  1st of this year we had a CRT landfill disposal ban

         19  which has encouraged compliance from all of the

         20  municipalities now in Maine.

         21                 We also have a retail sales ban on

         22  non-compliant manufacturers, and a strong

         23  enforcement clause, which I will discuss a little

         24  bit later in my testimony.

         25                 So, the big question in everybody's
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          2  minds, is Maine's e-waste system working. So, in

          3  order to ascertain whether Maine's e-waste system is

          4  working is we set out several objectives when we

          5  created the program before implementation, and those

          6  objectives were to create a system of shared

          7  responsibility, to maximize the collection of

          8  household televisions and monitors, to allow for

          9  collections from small businesses, to minimize new

         10  cost and municipalities and shift financial burden

         11  for e-waste recycling from taxpayers to

         12  manufacturers. Also, to create a system that's

         13  relatively simple, clear and consistent. And judging

         14  by these measures, I'm happy to report that we've

         15  largely succeeded on all counts.

         16                 Now, I'm just going to touch base

         17  briefly on some of these counts that I feel are

         18  pertinent to today's discussion. And the first

         19  question is, has Maine succeeded in creating a

         20  shared responsibility system? And the answer to that

         21  question is yes. The program is developed over the

         22  past year so that we had broad participation on a

         23  wide variety of participants, including 150

         24  manufacturers, covering 347 brands, 492 local

         25  jurisdictions as are all the municipalities in Maine
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          2  that are currently being served with over 200 local

          3  collection sites, five approved consolidators, three

          4  recyclers and we have retailer participation and a

          5  relatively low cost, low burden role for the State

          6  of Maine.

          7                 Second question: Is the program

          8  maximizing collection of household TVs and monitors?

          9  And that answer we feel is yes, with some community

         10  outreach and media outreach by municipalities, DEP

         11  and the Natural Resources Council, we've seen a

         12  large amount of electronic waste come out of Maine's

         13  solid waste system and into this new electronic

         14  waste recycling system.

         15                 During the first five months of the

         16  program, from January 18th to May 18th, 2006, we

         17  collected 14,068 TVs and 10,540 monitors. If you

         18  annualize that, it's about 60,000 units each year

         19  and about 2.3 million pounds of U waste collected

         20  annually.

         21                 If you extrapolate that figure by

         22  Maine's 1.28 million residents, that's about two

         23  pounds per capita of e-waste collected annually, if

         24  we use these estimates here, and we'll have better

         25  data at the end of the year.
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          2                 Does the program minimize cost for

          3  municipalities and shift financial burden from

          4  consumers and municipalities to manufacturers? And

          5  again, that answer is yes. The program transfers

          6  much of the transportation to all of the recycling

          7  costs from municipalities to manufacturers. This has

          8  enabled many towns to reduce or even eliminate their

          9  drop-off fees.

         10                 Before the law was implemented,

         11  municipalities that were collecting e-waste and

         12  charging, typically charged between $15 and $25 per

         13  unit to residents with the larger $25 figure for the

         14  larger console television sets.

         15                 Since the law has been implemented,

         16  many municipalities have eliminated their fees and

         17  most others have reduced their drop-off fees to

         18  between zero and $5 per unit.

         19                 To determine cost savings for Maine

         20  municipalities and taxpayers, I've multiplied the

         21  estimated 2.3 million pounds of e-waste collected by

         22  the average cost per pound charged by Maine's

         23  largest consolidator, which is Una Waste, which is

         24  currently charging about 19 cents per pound for

         25  e-waste recycled. That figures out to be an annual
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          2  cost savings of $437,000 for Maine towns and

          3  taxpayers.

          4                 If you take that figure up to 40

          5  cents per pound, or 30 cents per pound, for 30 cents

          6  per pound it's $690,000 savings, 40 cents per pound,

          7  it's $920,000 worth of savings. This is money that's

          8  been shifted from the taxpayer to the manufacturers.

          9                 I just briefly, want to touch

         10  briefly, I know my time is short, on some of the

         11  challenges and lessons learned that we've seen.

         12  Maine DEP has had some difficulty determining brand

         13  responsibility for obscure brands. You know,

         14  whenever a consolidator, because we have a return

         15  share system, when a consolidator has an old

         16  television or computer that they can't determine the

         17  brand for, you have to notify DEP and then DEP has

         18  to track down who that manufacturer might be. The

         19  New York bill includes an important clause under

         20  manufacturer, which is what we would like to change

         21  in role-making for this upcoming year, which I think

         22  should largely take care of that problem.

         23                 I just want to touch briefly about

         24  billing and are the manufacturers paying the bills,

         25  and the enforcement clause. The billing has been
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          2  relatively straightforward, and most manufacturers

          3  have been paying their bills. We've also seen some

          4  trust relationships that have been evolving between

          5  consolidators and many of the large manufacturers.

          6  I'm sure that -- I see Ric Erdheim over here from

          7  the television manufacturers, he might tell you

          8  differently, but we've seen, from my experience

          9  talking with consolidators, that they have seen

         10  these trust relationships forming.

         11                 The fact that most manufacturers are

         12  paying their bills is testament to the system, and

         13  also to the strong enforcement clause, and I'll talk

         14  just briefly about the enforcement clause.

         15                 We added the enforcement clause in

         16  the rule-making process. The clause stipulates that

         17  if a manufacturer fails to pay its bills, including

         18  its pro rata share of orphan waste, consolidators

         19  can petition DEP to cover the costs of the

         20  consolidator, and then seek cost recovery from the

         21  manufacturers. So, DEP can seek up to three times

         22  the allowable costs billed by the consolidator to

         23  the manufacturer.

         24                 I really hope that my presentation

         25  has confirmed that a producer responsibility system
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          2  can work to meet the demands that environmentally

          3  sound electronic waste recycling requires.

          4                 It's going to shift the

          5  responsibility from the current emphasis at the

          6  waste stand to the front of the product cycle, and

          7  many other folks have talked about that and all

          8  these other important things.

          9                 You know, again, I also want to echo

         10  Yerina's comments about New York becoming a national

         11  leader on this issue, and I wanted to highlight a

         12  couple of things that also would be of interest to

         13  the Committee. If you look at the last page, the

         14  appendix there, we actually have some hard data on

         15  orphan share for manufacturers, and from the first

         16  five months of the program, for orphan share

         17  collected from television manufacturers, it's about

         18  one and a half to two and a half percent of the

         19  total volume of TVs collected, so we're not talking

         20  about a significant amount of orphan share for

         21  television manufacturers.

         22                 We've also seen some very, very old

         23  -- I mean, there is the legacy waste issues that

         24  Ted raised, we've seen some very, very old

         25  television sets come into the system, and the
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          2  biggest problem for the consolidator has been, and

          3  the recyclers, is then when they start to handle and

          4  dismantle these things, that they're seeing massive

          5  cockroach infestations coming out of these old TVs,

          6  and they've been sitting in people's barns in the

          7  State of Maine.

          8                 And the orphan share for computer

          9  manufacturers is considerably higher. It's up to

         10  around 15 percent. I did talk to officials at Maine

         11  DEP. They do think that number is going to come

         12  down. But because the computer market is less mature

         13  than the television industry, that number is

         14  probably going to stabilize right around from

         15  between, you know, ten to 15 percent for an orphan

         16  share.

         17                 Again, we have a return share system,

         18  that's how we compute the pro rata share in Maine

         19  and that's worked out pretty well thus far.

         20                 I'd be happy to answer any questions

         21  if anybody has some.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Council Member

         23  DeBlasio.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: Thank you,

         25  Mr. Chairman.
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          2                 Not so much questions, as praise.

          3  Thank you, Mr. Chairman. You must create a very

          4  noble atmosphere here in the room, because we have

          5  these impressive witnesses from all over the country

          6  coming here, so we thank you for that.

          7                 But I just wanted to note what struck

          8  me from each of the testimonies, and it was very

          9  helpful, Ms. Mugica, I appreciate very much the

         10  point about the Sanitation workers which to the best

         11  of my knowledge has not been sort of front and

         12  center in this whole debate and should be, when you

         13  think about it may be a problem we're not seeing

         14  enough evidence on now but would down the line.

         15  We're, as you know, very, very concerned what

         16  happened to our workers at 9/11, for example, but

         17  this is a day-to-day problem that we have the

         18  opportunity to do something about right now.

         19                 I wanted to thank Mr. Cruz for the

         20  point about, which again, I don't know if we're

         21  remembering enough about that we're not just

         22  stopping an immediate environmental problem with the

         23  fact that this material would go into a landfill,

         24  but we're also stopping the need for additional

         25  mining, if we do this on a big enough scale, and
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          2  stopping a different type of environmental problem

          3  as a second positive impact down the line of this

          4  legislation.

          5                 Mr. Prindiville, I thank you for the

          6  point about getting the manufacturer's compliance by

          7  making it economically clear to them that if they

          8  didn't deal with you, you would deal with them, and

          9  I think charging three times as much is a very good

         10  way to do that. So, I appreciate your values of

         11  Yankee thriftiness there.

         12                 And, lastly, Mr. Smith, I thank you

         13  for your testimony. I remember your testimony from

         14  last time, I thank you very much for your work and

         15  your innovation, but the postal service point really

         16  struck me. Obviously, when you think about it, it's

         17  the best distribution or return network in the whole

         18  country, and I think you're right, they would

         19  probably love to get involved in something that

         20  would provide an important public service but also

         21  the revenues. So, I really appreciate you putting

         22  that front and center.

         23                 Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Thank you,

         25  Council member.
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          2                 Council Member Brewer.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you also

          4  for your testimony.

          5                 My question is, in the City

          6  government, State government, governments in

          7  general, have you engaged them in the State of Maine

          8  or some of the other, California? Obviously you've

          9  talked about individuals, but I have a feeling that

         10  our government has a lot of computers.

         11                 MR. SMITH: Oh, you mean the

         12  government itself. Oh.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: In other

         14  words, I know the Department of Education in our

         15  City has a lot --

         16                 MR. SMITH: Well, in California, one

         17  of the big problems is the State of California --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Right.

         19                 MR. SMITH: As well as the

         20  universities.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: What kind of

         22  programs are they utilizing?

         23                 MR. SMITH: They are still trying to

         24  get up to speed.

         25                 The State of California used to use
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          2  the State prison system and the federal prison

          3  system, which the bill that we passed there actually

          4  cut out luckily, because that's another thing that's

          5  another escape hatch, like export, a lot of these

          6  things are being sent to federal prisons, which have

          7  a program called Unicar, which is actually looking

          8  for, but the conditions inside those prisons are

          9  terrible, we just did a report on that.

         10                 The other point about the governments

         11  is that local governments in California were getting

         12  inundated with this stuff, and so they like the fact

         13  that there's a bill, but California has just

         14  recently expanded the scope of products that are now

         15  covered only in terms of the landfill, but not in

         16  terms of the revenue stream, so they're now getting

         17  inundated with a much broader scope of products.

         18  They don't have a revenue stream, they're now

         19  looking at this kind of a financing mechanism,

         20  because they are facing an unfunded mandate.

         21                 So, I think the fact that you're

         22  using that framework there, I think is an important

         23  one.

         24                 The other thing about the larger

         25  entities, though, as was mentioned earlier, they are
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          2  covered under RECRA, under the federal hazardous

          3  waste laws, they're large quantity generators, so

          4  they're already required to have their own

          5  recyclers. Whether they're doing it or not is an

          6  enforcement question but the law is very clear on

          7  that right now.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: So, in other

          9  words, every government institution under the

         10  federal law is supposed to be moving stuff out of

         11  closets into safe environments.

         12                 MR. SMITH: Yes. And particularly the

         13  old monitors, the CRT monitors, whether it's a

         14  television or computer, it takes a very small number

         15  of them before the quantity gets to be large enough

         16  to be a quote large quantity generator and then

         17  you're covered by RECRA and then if you try to

         18  dispose of it in the garbage, it's illegal. You can

         19  get serious hazardous waste penalties for that.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay.

         21                 What does the State of Maine do? Do

         22  you have towns and cities, are they getting rid of

         23  it effectively?

         24                 MR. PRINDIVILLE: Yes. Yes. As part of

         25  the State of Maine, they are not included in this
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          2  particular system. This is a household waste --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: I understand

          4  that.

          5                 MR. PRINDIVILLE: Yes.

          6                 As I mentioned, we've seen really

          7  with a minimum, of outreach, community outreach, we

          8  did some media release during the passage of the

          9  law, and also when it went into its implementation

         10  and when we had the landfill ban, and we've seen

         11  widespread participation from the citizens.

         12                 When you bring down, what we've seen,

         13  when you bring down, because I think it was about 30

         14  percent of the communities before we started the

         15  bill that were already handling electronic waste,

         16  and they, as I mentioned, the drop-off fees were

         17  between $15 and $25. After the law was implemented,

         18  we've seen those drop off fees be reduced down to

         19  between zero and $5. A lot of communities have

         20  eliminated them all together, because now the

         21  manufacturers are paying for the transportation,

         22  consolidation, handling and recycling fees.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: And do you use

         24  the post office, the Dell model? Because we don't

         25  have cars. I keep telling you that. We don't have a
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          2  dump.

          3                 MR. PRINDIVILLE: Sure. The way that

          4  we incorporate companies that have manufacturer

          5  take-back programs like Dell is that they get a

          6  credit for their orphan share. It doesn't cover

          7  their entire orphan share, but they do get a credit

          8  with those toward their orphan share.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you.

         10                 MR. PRINDIVILLE: You're welcome.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Thank you.

         12                 Council Member DeBlasio, a follow-up?

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: Thank you,

         14  Mr. Chair. I just forgot to ask Mr. Smith, I'm

         15  looking at the chart, which I really appreciate,

         16  it's extremely helpful analyzing the four state

         17  laws, and on the strengths and weaknesses, give us

         18  your honest and objective view of the legislation

         19  that we've proposed, how it would measure up

         20  comparatively. And anything that you, I think you

         21  were talking more of the national context, but

         22  anything you would urge us to look at as we go

         23  through the process with this legislation.

         24                 MR. SMITH: One of the things I think

         25  is a real strength of your bill is the scope of
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          2  products. It's a broad scope of products, and that's

          3  a major issue all around the country. Some companies

          4  and some entities are saying let's just narrow it to

          5  just monitors, just CRT monitors and not even worry

          6  about the flat panels. Well, I mean, it hasn't been

          7  mentioned here today, all flat panels, whether

          8  they're television or computers have mercury in

          9  them. It's a small amount of mercury, but when you

         10  add millions and millions of those things together,

         11  that's a lot of mercury. And the truth of the matter

         12  is, no recycler really knows what to do with that

         13  stuff. It's going to be a huge problem. So I really

         14  encourage you to keep this broad scope of products

         15  that you've got.

         16                 Secondly, your financing mechanism I

         17  think is, you know, by and large the right way to

         18  go. I think there is interesting and important

         19  discussion that needs to still be had about whether,

         20  what's the relationship between the market share and

         21  the return share?

         22                 You heard Maine has picked on the

         23  return share, you've got market share. I think there

         24  are strengths and weaknesses to both. You've got two

         25  different bills in Albany. This is clearly going to
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          2  be playing itself out.

          3                 I don't think it is worth it to slow

          4  down your process, but there is time between now and

          5  when you pass it, to look at that a little bit more.

          6  And, again, to look at it from the standpoint of

          7  what makes an efficient system, but also look at it

          8  from the standpoint of fairness. You want to get

          9  these new market players that are coming in that you

         10  miss in Maine, for the next 20 years, they might go

         11  out of business by then, if you look at it just as

         12  return share -- no, if you look at it just as market

         13  share, then you lose all these guys that are out

         14  there that ought to be participating and would get

         15  out scott-free. So I think there is a real fairness

         16  issue there. And I'd be glad to work with you as you

         17  go forward, if you want to think about that some

         18  more.

         19                 The collection, I think it's really

         20  good, as Council Member Brewer continues to say,

         21  what do we do in terms of the confines of New York

         22  City? It really is a different model here, it has to

         23  be.

         24                 I think that we need to have a very

         25  wide variety of options available. One size is not
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          2  going to fit all. But, again, you have the goals in

          3  here, which is going to drive this, and if it's in

          4  everybody's interest to meet those goals, they're

          5  going to want to make the system work, so they're

          6  going to want to make an efficient return and

          7  collection work.

          8                 If you don't have those goals, then

          9  it's not going to be in anyone's interest to not

         10  make it work and so it isn't going to work. So, I

         11  think that's really the key. I think that's the key

         12  driver.

         13                 And then I guess the last part, the

         14  bill that I recall here doesn't really deal with

         15  export or prisons, which are the two escape hatches

         16  right now. You could collect a whole bunch of stuff

         17  here, and as long as it's legal to export it or send

         18  it to prisons, we could still end up with very bad

         19  recycling.

         20                 One of the three key planks of the

         21  computer take-back campaign is responsible recycling

         22  and we define that, but two of the key elements

         23  there are we don't want this stuff continuing to

         24  cause harm in India and China, which you've probably

         25  seen some pictures of. We don't want it poisoning
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          2  workers and guards inside of our prisons.

          3                 We just did an event in Austin Texas

          4  two weeks ago where a prison guard is a

          5  whistle-blower on this whole thing came forward and

          6  said what's happening is terrible, and it's

          7  unconscionable to allow the kind of exposure in some

          8  of our prisons under the guise of, you know, job

          9  training.

         10                 So, I think your bill is silent. I

         11  think you could deal with the prisons pretty easily.

         12  The export I think is a legal question. You've got a

         13  lot of smart law school professor types in this

         14  community that I would give them an assignment and

         15  figure out how can you legally prevent export of

         16  hazardous electronic waste, have them come back to

         17  you in a very short time frame and figure it out.

         18  That was a big problem in Washington State where it

         19  was in the bill, the Governor was getting a lot of

         20  pressure from her own attorney general saying I

         21  don't think it's legal the way this thing is

         22  written, so they cut that provision out.

         23                 So, it is an enormous loophole and I

         24  really do think that's important. You don't want to

         25  be in a position where you're collecting tons of
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          2  stuff and then it's all being exported.

          3                 Those are the main things.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: Those are

          5  the weaknesses. You have no other weaknesses you

          6  want to flag for us at this point?

          7                 MR. SMITH: Not at this point, no.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: Okay. Thanks

          9  very much.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Thank you. And

         11  thank you to the panel very much. Thank you for

         12  coming. We look forward for your input and guidance

         13  as we move forward with this bill.

         14                 Our next panel is Richard Goss, from

         15  the Electronic Industries Alliance; Parker Brugge

         16  from Consumer Electronics Association; Ric Erdheim

         17  from Philips Electronics, and Robert Straniere from

         18  NYMRA. And I think, who is it, Mr. Erdheim has to

         19  catch a train? Who has got to catch a train? Parker

         20  has got to catch a train. Okay, so whoever -- I

         21  think Assemblyman Straniere will understand, we're

         22  going to let the faraway travelers go first. And

         23  anyone else who has to travel, we appreciate you

         24  coming so far, let us know and we'll try to move you

         25  out of here as quickly as possible.
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          2                 Okay, the floor is yours, gentlemen.

          3  Mr. Brugge, you have to go? Who has got to go the

          4  furthest? And he soonest?

          5                 MR. STRANIERE: No, I don't have to go

          6  the furthest and I don't have to go the soonest. But

          7  I will go first on this panel and I think everybody

          8  will be on their trains and planes in time. Thank

          9  you very much.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: If you have to

         11  leave and you've testified, we're not insulted if

         12  you get up and go. We understand.

         13                 MR. STRANIERE: You just want to be

         14  there for the Bobby Thompson dinner.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Exactly, I've

         16  got to be home for the Bobby Thompson dinner so I

         17  don't have to travel too far.

         18                 MR. BRUGGE: Good afternoon, Chairman

         19  McMahon, and members of the Committee. Thank you

         20  very much for the opportunity to testify before you

         21  with respect to Intro. 104, having to deal with

         22  electronics recycling.

         23                 My name is Parker Brugge, I'm with

         24  the Consumer Electronics Association and we

         25  represent over 2,000 members in the consumers
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          2  electronics industry and the IT industry, and our

          3  organization shares your interest and a

          4  comprehensive effective solution for electronics

          5  recycling.

          6                 Our preferred approach, however, is a

          7  national solution. We've been hearing that for many

          8  testifiers here today. Most of our efforts are

          9  focusing on bringing that about.

         10                 A recent study that we cofunded

         11  projected that across just the four states that have

         12  mandated electronics recycling in one form or

         13  another, and we have seen varying forms, $25 million

         14  per year in costs are spent by consumers, government

         15  and industry that would not be required with a

         16  national system.

         17                 So, we're participating in

         18  discussions with the congressional e-waste working

         19  group. We are hopeful that they will pass a national

         20  bill. But we, too, understand that it's a long

         21  process.

         22                 If the Council is convinced that

         23  there is a need for a mandated program specific to

         24  the City, then we're suggesting an alternative

         25  approach, and I'll get to that in just one second.
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          2                 This proposed ordinance, however, is

          3  unchartered territory in the US and would stick the

          4  City with a sizeable administrative burden. And I'll

          5  identify a couple of issues with respect to that.

          6                 Making the determination of what

          7  company is responsible for what brand, and in what

          8  proportions is a very complicated exercise. It

          9  sounds very simple but it's really not.

         10                 So, a couple of questions. What's

         11  standard with the City use to determine who in the

         12  chain of commerce is the responsible manufacturer?

         13  Is it the owner or licenser of the brand name? Or is

         14  it the brand licensee who actually designs and

         15  manufactures the product?

         16                 We're not aware of any collection of

         17  data on how much of a brand is sold and to a local

         18  jurisdiction. And given the way that many products

         19  are distributed, only retailers and manufacturers

         20  who sell directly will have that data for their

         21  companies.

         22                 What will the City do when different

         23  manufacturers use different assumptions and datasets

         24  to calculate a percentage of the average annual

         25  sales of the manufacturers covered electronic

                                                            110

          1  SANITATION AND SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT

          2  equipment in the City during the previous five

          3  calendar years?

          4                 Will the percentage collection rates

          5  be for individual product categories, for example,

          6  TVs or computers, or will it be across all covered

          7  electronic equipment? And will the collection rates

          8  be based on average product weight or number of

          9  units sold? You've heard one of the witnesses also

         10  testify with respect to that issue.

         11                 How many product categories are

         12  there? It appears in Intro. 104 that there are

         13  eight. Will pro rata orphan shares be allocated

         14  within each product category, as Maine does for

         15  their two product categories? Or will it be done

         16  across product categories?

         17                 And then finally, what data sources

         18  will the City utilize to determine pro rate orphan

         19  shares in the first year and in subsequent years?

         20                 The ordinance says the City could use

         21  sales data provided by manufacturers, but any sales

         22  data will provide information only about brands that

         23  are being sold, not the orphan brands now being

         24  collected for recycling that were sold years ago by

         25  defunct manufacturers.
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          2                 And I think you'll hear from a couple

          3  of the other witnesses that there is a real fairness

          4  issue here. The established manufacturers, like the

          5  ones you'll be hearing from, if this ordinance is

          6  passed will be there, and will take care of their

          7  responsibility, but we're talking about companies

          8  that are no longer around.

          9                 If the Council feels the need, still

         10  feels the need to mandate electronics recycling,

         11  we're suggesting that the City follow a variation of

         12  the California model. That creates a dedicated

         13  revenue stream. It's a pay me now approach, as

         14  opposed to a pay me later or promise to act later

         15  approach.

         16                 In California I think you've heard

         17  already the cost of recycling is paid by consumers

         18  that when they buy a particular product they pay a

         19  fee of $6, $8 or $10, in comparison to the price of

         20  these products, it's a very nominal fee, that

         21  provides a consumer education element, which is

         22  another important element of any electronic

         23  recycling program. We feel consumers need to be

         24  educated on why it's important for them to recycle

         25  these products, and they get educated on what
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          2  vehicles they have to recycle those products.

          3                 The California system is working.

          4  They've given numbers earlier this month, actually,

          5  at a conference in Austin, Texas, that in the first

          6  half of this year alone, they had collected 66

          7  million pounds of covered electronic products, so

          8  that translates to, if you carry it out to the end

          9  of the year, 132 million pounds of covered

         10  electronic products.

         11                 And we've heard anecdotal data from

         12  recyclers that they collect a huge amount of

         13  electronic products that are not covered in the

         14  covered scope. So, California is working.

         15                 Whatever system that is put in place,

         16  consumers need to have an easy and convenient way to

         17  recycle their products. So, we feel that electronics

         18  recycling is a national issue, the financing piece

         19  of it should be a national issue. The collection and

         20  recycling of those products should be done on a

         21  State and local basis, depending upon the different

         22  circumstances that localities are in.

         23                 And I want to touch on just a couple

         24  of points in response to some of the previous

         25  witnesses. First of all, there was some suggestion
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          2  that the digital transition in 2009 is going to

          3  present a huge number of TVs coming into the waste

          4  stream.

          5                 First, with respect to TVs that are

          6  connected to cable or satellite, those TVs are still

          7  going to work after the transition takes place, no

          8  change whatsoever. TVs, very small percentage of TVs

          9  that are connected through antenna, receive

         10  broadcasts through antenna, those consumers can go

         11  buy a digital to analog converter box for about $40,

         12  we estimate, and they will still be able to use

         13  those TVs after the transition. So, you know, the

         14  point is if those TVs are going to still be working,

         15  we doubt consumers are going to throw them away. Mr.

         16  Erdheim did remind me, in the federal program, the

         17  federal bill, dealing with digital transition

         18  there's a subsidy for consumers to buy those

         19  converter boxes.

         20                 Two more points. The producer

         21  responsibility idea, it's been suggested that

         22  producer responsibility in Europe is one form, it's

         23  a take-back approach. Well, it's not. It comes in a

         24  number of different reforms, many of which, and I

         25  think it's safe to say that the larger percentage of
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          2  which systems in Europe are covered by a fee,

          3  consumers pay the fee, retailers pay the fee, it's

          4  an up-front financed system.

          5                 And then finally, somebody gave the

          6  example of the trans fat and how KFC is removing

          7  trans fat from their products. The analogy is

          8  interesting, because this legislation would require

          9  KFC to pick up the old chicken and the old bones.

         10  What has worked for manufacturers is the RoHS

         11  Directive, and then inherent incentives within

         12  manufacturers design efforts to remove materials of

         13  concern. That's what works, producer responsibility

         14  type of approach does not provide that same

         15  incentive.

         16                 Thank you very much for the

         17  opportunity to provide testimony. I will be happy to

         18  answer questions after the panel is through.

         19                 MR. ERDHEIM: Mr. Chairman, to show

         20  you where I'm coming from, yesterday at the gym, I

         21  wore my 1955 --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Please state

         23  your name for the record first. I'm sorry.

         24                 MR. ERDHEIM: I will in a second. I

         25  just want to tell you a funny story. I wore my 1955
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          2  Brooklyn Dodger World Series tee-shirt, so when you

          3  say you're going to a Bobby Thompson event tonight,

          4  that's not something I'm really interested in

          5  helping you with. What he did to my Dodgers is

          6  unacceptable. Mr. Chairman, and members of the

          7  Committee, my name is Ric Erdheim, I'm Senior

          8  Counsel for Philips Electronics. Philips is one of

          9  the largest consumer electronics companies in the

         10  world. We're a dutch-owned company, but our North

         11  American headquarters is up in Midtown Manhattan.

         12                 I am here on behalf of, not only

         13  Philips Electronics, but also our Coalition, the

         14  Electronic Manufacturers Coalition for Responsible

         15  Recycling. All of the major TV manufacturers and a

         16  number of consumer computer manufacturers belong to

         17  our coalition. I'll get into that in a second.

         18                 We are opposed to the bill. Mr.

         19  Brugge has already outlined some of our concerns and

         20  are detailed in my testimony. I want to focus on

         21  just a couple of things.

         22                 First, the bill is based on a false

         23  assumption. The bill is based on the assumption that

         24  if we charge manufacturers for the cost of paying

         25  for recycling, that manufacturers are going to make
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          2  better products.

          3                 Well, Mr. Chairman, if that's the

          4  case, that means that manufacturers need an

          5  incentive, that means that manufacturers haven't

          6  been making better products because we haven't had

          7  an incentive for that. Quite frankly, that's just

          8  for an established manufacturer like Philips. With

          9  the record we have, that's just ridiculous.

         10                 My testimony on page two goes through

         11  all of the things that we've done, but let me just

         12  highlight a couple of them.

         13                 In 2004, 2005, 2007, Philips was the

         14  top company in the leisure goods market sector of

         15  the Dow Jones Sustainability Index. This is an index

         16  that Dow Jones runs, identifying the most

         17  sustainable companies in all of the various market

         18  sectors. We were second in 2006 to Sony, which is

         19  another one of our coalition partners.

         20                 In the global 100 rating of the 100

         21  most sustainable companies, Philips is one of the

         22  members, as is again two of our coalition partners,

         23  Canon and Panasonic. If we needed an incentive to

         24  make better products, how do we get all this

         25  national recognition.
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          2                 Just a few weeks ago, the European

          3  Imaging and Sound Association, named Philips as the

          4  "manufacturer of European green TV of the year,"

          5  for our work in terms of energy efficiency and

          6  making easier recyclability.

          7                 And the list goes on and on and on

          8  and on. So, how did we do this? How did we do this

          9  without the incentive that this bill says we need to

         10  make better products? And it's simply just a false

         11  statement.

         12                 If I could ask you to turn to the

         13  last two pages of my testimony, you'll see a chart

         14  that was prepared by an expert who spoke at this

         15  e-scrap conference in Austin that you've heard a lot

         16  about, and this expert shows the differences that

         17  manufacturers -- you've got it, Mr. Chairman -- this

         18  chart shows the differences in how manufacturers go

         19  about making their products. And if you look at the

         20  high end where manufacturers are making the most

         21  changes, you'll see Japanese and some European

         22  companies, consumer computer companies, and then in

         23  the bottom left you'll see older US, China and small

         24  companies. And just to be clear, if you look on the

         25  next page, you'll see the sum "European" Philips is
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          2  the first company name.

          3                 So, we're already at the high end of

          4  the scale and what this bill, no matter how well

          5  intentioned, is it penalizes the companies who have

          6  already made all of the changes and rewards the

          7  companies in the bottom left-hand corner who aren't

          8  making any of the changes, who undercut us because

          9  they're not making any of the changes.

         10                 So, not only does this bill not

         11  provide an incentive for manufacturers to make

         12  better products, it provides a disincentive.

         13                 Now, I want to talk about a couple of

         14  the points that have been raised. There have been so

         15  many false and incorrect statements, I hardly know

         16  where to begin.

         17                 First, as Mr. Brugge said, in terms

         18  of Europe, under the European system, retailers are

         19  required to take back what's called WE, or waste

         20  electrical or electronic products. There's nothing

         21  like that in this bill.

         22                 Second, two-thirds of the population

         23  of Europe will be living in states or in nations

         24  where there's going to be an advanced fee.

         25                 Now, it's true manufacturers are
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          2  responsible for recycling, but two-thirds of the

          3  population will pay the fee which will go to

          4  manufacturers to pay for the collection which they

          5  will then collect from retailers.

          6                 That's not this bill at all. That's

          7  not this bill at all. That's the European system and

          8  it's simply not this bill. Now, we're heard a lot

          9  about, well, manufacturers have gotten the products

         10  in using the existing infrastructure, why can't they

         11  just take them out?

         12                 Well, we don't bring products in. We

         13  sell products to national retailers, and it's the

         14  national retailers who distribute the product in,

         15  but this bill has got nothing about the retailers

         16  bringing it in or bringing it out. So, the idea that

         17  we'll just use the existing system, in fact, in some

         18  cases, Mr. Chairman, retailers buy products that are

         19  manufactured by us in China and take, they take the

         20  products in China and distribute that through their

         21  distribution system. So, the notion that

         22  manufacturers get it into New York City is just an

         23  incorrect statement.

         24                 Now, Representative Colton said the

         25  reason we haven't gotten legislation is
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          2  manufacturers oppose legislation. I don't know how

          3  we can say that. We were the ones who supported the

          4  California bill and pushed it through, and we've

          5  gone into every state and said this is the mechanism

          6  that we feel works, and we can get into a lot, we

          7  can argue about that enough, but the notion that we

          8  haven't come forward with something positive is just

          9  ridiculous.

         10                 Now, let's look very briefly at the

         11  California system. At the e-waste conference, and

         12  based on some analysis I have, we can conclude that

         13  under the California system they're collecting six

         14  pounds of electronics per person. There is no state

         15  anywhere in the United States that's even close to

         16  that. And in fact, the Maine system that we've heard

         17  so much about at the e-waste conference in Austin,

         18  Maine projects that they'll get one pound of

         19  electronic waste per person. And in fact, in a

         20  survey that was done of the electronics recyclers,

         21  electronics recyclers in California say they like

         22  the system and the electronics recyclers in

         23  California said that they really didn't think the

         24  Maine system was a system that should be adopted

         25  elsewhere.
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          2                 I mean, that's what's really going

          3  on. Now, in answer to your question, Councilwoman,

          4  under the California system collectors, get paid 20

          5  cents a pound. So, if we had a system like that

          6  here, you would call up someone, they would be

          7  fighting to collect your television set because they

          8  paid for that. I mean, that's one of the beauties of

          9  the California system, there's an incentive to

         10  collect and recycle that stuff because they get paid

         11  for it. I mean, what better way to deal with the

         12  urban problem than that way?

         13                 We also heard about the tremendous

         14  overhead in the California system. When you actually

         15  look at the data, you find out the overhead is ten

         16  percent. But let me go beyond that.

         17                 We have said we will run, just as is

         18  done in Europe, we will set up a third-party

         19  organization and run the collection program. All

         20  we're asking for is that financing be done by the

         21  advanced fee which is paid by consumers. We would

         22  use that money and be responsible for the program.

         23  That's how irresponsible we've been.

         24                 Finally, as a reference to Samsung,

         25  and Samsung supports producer responsibility, let me
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          2  assure you, Samsung is a member of our Coalition, it

          3  does not support producer responsibility. It is

          4  strongly in support of an advanced recycling fee.

          5                 Finally, Mr. Chairman, again, my

          6  testimony goes into detail, and I appreciate you

          7  letting me go early, my testimony goes into detail

          8  about the economics of the television industry, and

          9  quite frankly, the economics are very poor, to say

         10  the least.

         11                 Let me summarize all of that by

         12  giving you one example: Merrill Lynch, a company you

         13  probably all heard of, has done an analysis of the

         14  four major businesses that Philips Electronics has.

         15  And our consumer electronics business, Merrill Lynch

         16  valued that business. It's an 11 -- we have $11

         17  billion of sales. Merrill Lynch valued that business

         18  at zero. At zero. That's how tough the market is

         19  now. So, this bill says, well, manufacturers will

         20  just pick up the cost for that and I'm sitting here

         21  going, how? We're not making money now, we're not

         22  making money now, how are we going to pay for this?

         23  And you say, well, you'll add it into the cost of

         24  the product. That doesn't reflect the real world.

         25  The real world is that margins, thin to nonexistent,
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          2  because of the power of the retailers, and, again,

          3  I'm not here to criticize the retailers, that's the

          4  market, but the retailers set the price, we don't

          5  set the price, and because we have all these Chinese

          6  companies that are coming in that are undercutting

          7  us, that are not doing the environmental design that

          8  I just showed you in the chart. They're the ones

          9  that benefit. I mean, how sweet is that? Let's go

         10  after the guys who are doing all the responsible

         11  work, and let's really tag them with it. I'm just

         12  sitting here, I'm stunned, I'm just literally

         13  stunned.

         14                 So, we want to work with you on a

         15  bill. We have never said don't collect this stuff.

         16  We do want to collect the stuff. We've been

         17  supporters of collecting it at the very beginning,

         18  but we simply need a system that is economically

         19  reasonable and that provides the right incentives.

         20  And I know the Council member had the best of

         21  intention in setting up his bill, but it simply does

         22  not do the job that's economically feasible.

         23                 So, thank you very much. I'd be happy

         24  to answer any of your questions.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Thank you very
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          2  much.

          3                 Who is next? Bob?

          4                 MR. GOSS: Thank you, Chairman

          5  McMahon, members of the Committee. My name is

          6  Richard Goss, I'm the Senior Director of

          7  Environmental Affairs at the Electronic Industries

          8  Alliance in Arlington, Virginia, EIA.

          9                 EIA's 1,300-member companies

         10  manufacturer the full range of information

         11  technology and consumer electronics that are the

         12  subject of today's hearing and Introduction 104. I

         13  very much appreciate the opportunity to provide the

         14  views of our membership concerning the proper

         15  management of our products.

         16                 In terms of a bit of background, in

         17  2005, our CEO and I each testified before the US

         18  Congress on this issue, and our members, our

         19  industry, are continuing to actively lead efforts to

         20  reach a consensus resolution to the electronics

         21  recycling challenge.

         22                 The point I'll make about our

         23  testimony last year, our CEO is a former

         24  congressman. He went to some of his colleagues with

         25  a message that we wanted to get this addressed at a
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          2  national level. All of our members from the TV side,

          3  from the IT side, collectively, told us very clearly

          4  that they wanted to get this resolved. They wanted

          5  to do it in a proper, efficient, environmentally

          6  sound manner here.

          7                 A couple of key points I'd like to

          8  bring out, though, having to do with some of the

          9  fairness issues and the applicability issues that

         10  we've heard so far, during the congressional

         11  hearings last year, the US Department of Commerce

         12  testified that government decisions on electronics

         13  recycling can impact the market competitiveness of

         14  US companies, and we strongly agree with that

         15  assessment.

         16                 As Mr. Erdheim mentioned, our member

         17  companies, which are the key manufacturers, the

         18  global brand name, are already facing unprecedented

         19  global competition, as the primary products

         20  contemplated under Introduction 104 and under most

         21  other recycling approaches are increasingly treated

         22  by the market as commodities. The margins are thin,

         23  producers depend on volume sales, and any shift in

         24  the competitive playing field can have a direct and

         25  immediate impact on market share and the bottom
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          2  line. And this is perhaps the most critical point in

          3  the discussion on financing. Since there are very

          4  clear distinctions between the leading manufacturers

          5  and our literally hundreds of market competitors.

          6                 We've been hearing a lot from the

          7  witnesses today about making manufacturers

          8  responsible for products as if we're all the same.

          9  Well, manufacturers are not all the same, quite

         10  clearly. The leading manufacturers recognize that

         11  we're responsible for continuously improving the

         12  design and performance of our products, and we fully

         13  embrace that responsibility.

         14                 Many EI members initiated design for

         15  environment and product stewardship programs years

         16  before the European union adopted the restriction of

         17  hazardous substances directive, the RoHS Directive.

         18  It's also important to note that while we do use

         19  materials such as lead, mercury, flame retardants in

         20  our products, they are used for targeted and

         21  critical applications, for safety, energy

         22  efficiency, reliability and performance.

         23                 We are not using these materials out

         24  of no purpose. As we are able to come up and our

         25  members have innovated to minimize substitute,
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          2  replace the use of these materials, as other

          3  opportunities, other options are technically

          4  available we've done so.

          5                 I will also add regarding the

          6  European RoHS Directive, which broadly regulates the

          7  use of compounds and electronics, that directive was

          8  made possible in large part by the advances of our

          9  own member companies, and the advances in materials

         10  and design realized by our manufacturers. Basically

         11  the European union looked to see what the state of

         12  the art was, what the industry already demonstrated

         13  was possible, and that's where they do the line and

         14  said the rest of the supply chain needs to meet that

         15  standard, and as the leading companies in this

         16  industry continue to innovate, the RoHS Directive is

         17  going to evolve in parallel.

         18                 We have been recognized, as Mr.

         19  Erdheim noted, many of our member companies, by the

         20  Dow Jones sustainability index, by the financial

         21  times, by the global 100 for our consistent concrete

         22  environmental and sustainability achievements. By

         23  contrast, many of our competitors are at best doing

         24  the very minimum to comply with these same global,

         25  environmental and energy requirements. Some of them
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          2  do not meet accepted health, safety, labor and

          3  environmental standards, are not complying with

          4  mandatory requirements under existing state

          5  requirements in California, Maine and Maryland, and

          6  have actually been cited by the Fair Trade

          7  Commission for dump and run business practices here

          8  in the US.

          9                 The important point to make is, our

         10  member companies, the leading member companies, not

         11  only comply everywhere but we're pushing the

         12  envelope everywhere.

         13                 We've provided the Committee with a

         14  brand list of electronics carried by just some of

         15  the major retailers, just as a snapshot of what's

         16  out there on the marketplace to demonstrate the

         17  breath of competition in the electronics

         18  marketplace.

         19                 I will make a couple of points. The

         20  list is far from comprehensive. We just picked

         21  several of the major retailers, there are several

         22  others out there, and it does not include the

         23  innumerable small generic non-brand manufacturers.

         24  These manufacturers make up approximately 25 to 30

         25  percent of the personal computer market in this
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          2  country. Individually not one of them has very large

          3  market share but collectively it's a quarter of the

          4  market. They're completely under the radar screen

          5  right now.

          6                 So, in summary on this point, I would

          7  add that the sustainable manufacturers, because of

          8  this intense competition, have already lost

          9  significant market share to low-cost competitors

         10  with questionable business and environmental

         11  practices.

         12                 Now, to pick up on a point already

         13  made, the retroactive liability that's put forward

         14  in Introduction 104, is going to reward those

         15  companies at the expense of the leading sustainable

         16  manufacturers. By forcing long-time market

         17  participants to accept responsibility for every

         18  product that we've ever made that's here in the City

         19  of New York, the proposal will impose millions, if

         20  not more, dollars of unanticipated cost on the

         21  manufacturers that are driving the constant

         22  innovation and environmental design and performance.

         23                 New market entrants will not have

         24  these same obligations, or made evade enforcement,

         25  as they have already done under existing state
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          2  statutes.

          3                 This will raise product prices for

          4  companies that are doing the most on sustainability,

          5  while handing market share to our competitors.

          6  Frankly, we'd be asked to take responsibility for

          7  our historic products, for the historic products of

          8  many of our competitors who were outside the reach

          9  of this and other state approaches for a lot of

         10  orphan products that were sold by our competitors,

         11  sold and profitted for by the retailers but we're

         12  getting on the hook for those as well, basically

         13  we're going to hand over more market share to the

         14  companies that are doing the very least and perhaps

         15  aren't even complying, and this is not a reasonable

         16  outcome, it's not a desirable outcome.

         17                 As Mr. Brugge mentioned, his

         18  organization and my organization are very involved

         19  with the Congressional US Working Group right now

         20  down at Washington. That group is currently

         21  sponsoring a process to develop federal legislation

         22  or address electronics recycling, and our

         23  organizations collectively are leading the effort to

         24  reach a financing consensus among our members,

         25  that's the key element to getting this resolved.
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          2                 We're actively discussing several

          3  potential solutions, some of which you've heard

          4  about today already. This include potentially

          5  addressing computer IT equipment, separately from

          6  televisions, addressing legacy products separately

          7  from new sales.

          8                 We are hosting another major

          9  in-person manufacturing meeting in about two weeks,

         10  to hopefully get a discussion further along as we

         11  already have on financing agreement here. But the

         12  financing issue aside, I'd like to just state

         13  briefly the following principals that our members

         14  support, for any legislation.

         15                 We need to have a level playing and

         16  fair competition for all market participants. It has

         17  to apply to all, it has to be thoroughly enforced.

         18  We can't penalize sustainable companies while

         19  rewarding our competitors and giving them increased

         20  market share.

         21                 It should only to devices generated

         22  by households. A couple of people here have made the

         23  point already that government businesses,

         24  institutions, are already required to manage their

         25  end-of-life electronics or their used electronics
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          2  for that matter, properly. And in fact, many

          3  equipment providers already offer product management

          4  services as part of sales and lease contracts. We

          5  don't want to interfere with those successful

          6  practices or those contract provisions.

          7                 I'll reiterate clearly our preference

          8  for a focus on national, regional solutions here. As

          9  manufacturers were operating in a global marketplace

         10  and we can't operate efficiently under an

         11  insufficient patchwork of State and City

         12  requirements, and the important point here is lack

         13  of consistency between jurisdictions increases

         14  compliance costs, which are ultimately going to be

         15  passed along to the consumers or swallowed by member

         16  companies here.

         17                 We worked at the federal level. We're

         18  very involved with the CSG approach. We're involved

         19  in various state efforts as well. And the last

         20  principle I'll put forth here is relying on shared

         21  responsibility to ensure the proper management of

         22  these products while minimizing cost increases to

         23  consumers.

         24                 When we went to Congress last year,

         25  we basically testified the key point, the cardinal
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          2  point of our testimony was that all the

          3  institutional players who were involved in these

          4  products from beginning to end, from the

          5  manufacturers through the retail distribution

          6  networks to the recyclers, the NGOs government, they

          7  all need to come together, they all need to

          8  participate based on unique experiences, unique

          9  capabilities, and develop a system that's convenient

         10  for the residential consumer.

         11                 There has been some discussion here

         12  about, well, how do you do that in the City of New

         13  York and where there are not a lot of people with

         14  cars, and where it may be a challenge to get some of

         15  these devices fed back into the system. One way to

         16  look at it, whether it's New York City or

         17  nationally, if you look at it nationally, there are

         18  120 million US households, pretty much every one of

         19  those on average has a TV, a computer, some other

         20  electronics, if we look at how those products got

         21  into those households to begin with, predominantly

         22  through retailers, but also through direct from

         23  manufacturers, through internet sales, through

         24  catalog sales, through a variety of other efforts,

         25  all those mechanisms should be available to get
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          2  those products back through the system, and that can

          3  be supplemented, I've heard talk about the postal

          4  service today, municipal solid waste collection that

          5  can be recognized somehow as part of the solution

          6  here, but the important part is to have an

          7  efficient, and have various options for getting all

          8  this equipment back out of these households, because

          9  that is the single biggest cost, it's the single

         10  biggest challenge, to get all of this material back

         11  out of individual households once it's already in

         12  there.

         13                 And the other point I'll make is that

         14  as Mr. Erdheim mentioned, manufacturers are often

         15  two, or three, or four steps removed from the final

         16  consumer user. You know, we're going through

         17  importers, we're going through retailers,

         18  distributors, wholesalers, all the way through their

         19  distribution channels to get to that end user.

         20                 The last point I would make is that

         21  we're currently compiling some detailed

         22  recommendations from our members on specific

         23  provisions of Introduction 104, which we plan to

         24  provide to the Committee in the next few days, and

         25  I'd like to thank you for the opportunity to share
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          2  our views.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Thank you, Mr.

          5  Goss.

          6                 Mr. Straniere.

          7                 MR. STRANIERE: Thank you, Mr.

          8  Chairman. I wonder why I'm on this panel, I have a

          9  different point of view, the organizations I'm

         10  representing this afternoon. But first, let me

         11  publicly acknowledge your leadership, your

         12  initiatives, your success and your effectiveness in

         13  dealing with the solid waste issues, not only for

         14  the City but more specifically for the Borough of

         15  Staten Island, and I certainly have enjoyed working

         16  with you and your very distinguished staff over the

         17  years. And I certainly think that the quality of the

         18  testimony this afternoon was enhanced by

         19  recommendations of my former colleague, Assemblyman

         20  Colton, who now Chairs the Committee that the former

         21  Assemblyman Eric Vitaliano and myself were actually

         22  the first members on, along with Rick Morris's a

         23  good friend and mine, the Congressman Maurice

         24  Henshi, when he chaired the Environmental Committee

         25  in the Assembly. And certainly the fine work of Rona
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          2  Cohen at the Council of State Governments is very

          3  well known to me from my participation as a member

          4  of that board over the years I served. A very fine

          5  presentation, and it's wonderful to see so many of

          6  our members in the northeast are acting on the

          7  legislation, at least getting it consideration in

          8  ten states, and I'm sure Pennsylvania will be next

          9  with Chris Ross.

         10                 But, Mr. Chairman, I'm testifying

         11  today on behalf of the New York Metropolitan Retail

         12  Association, known as NYMRA, an organization which

         13  consists primarily of national chain retailers

         14  operating in the City of New York. Like last year's

         15  hearing, a close friend of everyone of this room,

         16  Dan Halperin represented the position of NYMRA. As

         17  you know, Don lost his battle to cancer earlier this

         18  summer and passed away, but his memory and his

         19  legacy I know will live on, all who worked with him,

         20  or whom he represented in his senate district in

         21  Brooklyn for many, many years.

         22                 In addition, I'm reflecting this

         23  afternoon the views of the Consumer Electronic

         24  Retail Coalition, a national organization, that's

         25  working closely with NYMRA and the Retail Council of

                                                            137

          1  SANITATION AND SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT

          2  New York State, to develop a strong and responsive

          3  approach to electronic recycling for all Americans.

          4                 But I want to state at the onset that

          5  NYMRA is in generally agreement with the conceptual

          6  framework of the New York City Council proposal on

          7  handling electronics at their end of life.

          8                 We would however much prefer to see a

          9  national uniformed approach to this important issue,

         10  due to the cross-border aspects of distributing and

         11  selling consumer electronics, and because most of

         12  our members operate nationally and develop their

         13  business purposes on a nationwide basis.

         14                 In the past year, since this

         15  Committee last met on the issue, there have been a

         16  tremendous amount of activity at state, regional and

         17  national levels, not only the bills introduced in

         18  Albany and in the ten states, but our former

         19  assembly colleague, now Congresswoman Louise

         20  Slaughter, has taken the initiative in Washington

         21  and put together an e-waste congressional working

         22  group, and they are working with a cross section of

         23  manufacturers, retailers, recyclers, non-profits and

         24  local government officials to craft a national bill

         25  that hopefully will be taken up in January, which
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          2  ever party is in the majority.

          3                 With regard to the Council's bill, we

          4  support the thrust of the proposal, because it

          5  places primary responsibility for the development of

          6  an end-of-life recycling plan on manufacturers to

          7  develop a recycling program.

          8                 It is critical to point out the

          9  retailers are concerned with the fact that numerous

         10  jurisdictions can impose different approaches to

         11  solving the e-waste problem, which would wreak havoc

         12  on retailers distribution of product systems.

         13                 We do, however, applaud the City

         14  Council, which often undertakes to solve a problem,

         15  even if it believes it can best be approached at the

         16  national level.

         17                 It's important to point out that the

         18  NYMRA is most concerned about the creation of a

         19  private right of action to enforce this proposal.

         20                 In that regard, I was encouraged to

         21  hear the comments of the representative from the

         22  Sanitation Department, who also questioned the need

         23  for the private right of action, the citizen

         24  lawsuit. And I know we have had discussions with our

         25  friends at the Natural Resources Defense Council

                                                            139

          1  SANITATION AND SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT

          2  about that particular clause, as being troublesome.

          3                 We believe Section 16-347 of the

          4  bill, which provides more than adequate penalties

          5  and enforcement, can best be a deterrent and punish

          6  any retailers who fail to comply with the

          7  legislation's provisions.

          8                 NYMRA would like to reiterate some

          9  other concerns that we shared with you at last

         10  year's hearing, regarding the basic ability of

         11  retailers to comply with this law.

         12                 You can see from the way the law is

         13  written that there is already sensitivity to the

         14  problem, but it cannot be overstated how difficult

         15  it is for retailers who rely upon regional

         16  distribution to properly allocate products to

         17  jurisdictions with varying laws.

         18                 If manufacturers could be induced to

         19  label each and every item sold in the United States

         20  in accordance with the bill, that concern would be

         21  ameliorated. The absence of that approach, it is

         22  very difficult for a retailer who distributes in

         23  numerous local jurisdictions to comply with the law

         24  by assuring that every item sold is properly

         25  labeled. Consumers do not like to purchase equipment
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          2  from an open carton and the costs and difficulty of

          3  unsealing and resealing to confirm that each and

          4  every item is properly labeled would be overly

          5  burdensome to any retailer. That is why the

          6  provisions in this proposal permits retailers to

          7  rely upon notification of manufacturers that the

          8  items do comply with the law is so very important.

          9                 The reality today is that most

         10  electronic products are manufactured and packaged

         11  outside the United States. Many retailers are now

         12  considering arrangements whereby vendor

         13  manufacturers will ship directly their merchandise

         14  to the retailers stores, and thereby obviating their

         15  customary inventory distribution role.

         16                 Even under the current distribution

         17  system of most national retailers, distribution

         18  centers are located outside of the City of New York,

         19  and in most cases outside the state.

         20                 A truck with multiple products often

         21  delivers to numerous destinations both within the

         22  City and throughout the region. These situations

         23  further complicate the problem of product specified

         24  target distribution. Also the inability of a

         25  retailer to sell an item within the City of New York
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          2  where it may have an oversupply in other

          3  jurisdictions is problematic and potentially costly.

          4                 We also feel it important to ask the

          5  Council more precisely to define the term

          6  "manufacturer." It is critical to see the success

          7  of this law that you identify the responsibility of

          8  manufacturers, based on whether or not they have a

          9  US presence, whether the manufacturer is offering

         10  for sale in New York City their product under it's

         11  own brand or a different brand.

         12                 By the same token, retailers are more

         13  than willing to do our part and take responsibility

         14  as a defined manufacturer if the producer of a

         15  private label brand does not have a significant

         16  presence in the United States or if the retailer is

         17  the importer of record of any covered device and the

         18  producer does not have a US presence.

         19                 NYMRA also wishes to point out some

         20  additional issues contained in the proposed law that

         21  we feel are of extreme importance and need to be

         22  fine-tuned before you move forward on the

         23  legislation.

         24                 As currently written, the Council's

         25  proposal includes a very broad scope of products,
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          2  including computer peripherals and other such

          3  devices. The fact is it may be more realistic,

          4  environmentally consistent, to take baby steps, by

          5  starting with a narrower scope of electronic

          6  products, and then following successful

          7  implementation of the law, later adding additional

          8  products if necessary.

          9                 It is our opinion that the City of

         10  New York should initially focus on finding a

         11  solution to managing those electronic products that

         12  have been identified by the US Environmental

         13  Protection Agency as having the greatest potential

         14  to being hazardous to the environment or to human

         15  health, namely video display devices, and more

         16  particularly, Cathold Ray Tubes.

         17                 Secondly, we urge the Council to more

         18  specifically identify within the legislation the

         19  basis of identifying the manufacturing

         20  responsibility, probably basing the calculation on

         21  weight, rather than by number of individual units

         22  sold.

         23                 Third, it is extremely important that

         24  the Council include a preemption clause in the

         25  legislation that takes into account any future
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          2  action taken by the Congress or the State

          3  Legislature. In that regard, the Maryland law, which

          4  was cited, has a five-year sunset and the California

          5  and Washington law also make a reference to federal

          6  action as sunsetting those statutes.

          7                 The management of a successful

          8  recycling program for consumer electronics is best

          9  suited for a broader geographical and cross-broader

         10  approach. New York City residents should not have to

         11  pay inflated costs of handling recycling costs. The

         12  expense and coordination of systems can be borne at

         13  the State and federal levels and shared by all.

         14                 Finally, we want to point out that

         15  the ability of a remote retailer, such as an

         16  internet and catalog company not located in New York

         17  City, to sell a non-compliant product to a New York

         18  City resident, can put local retailers at a

         19  competitive disadvantage.

         20                 Meanwhile, NYMRA members are selling

         21  electronic equipment and having their own recycling

         22  initiatives in place. Reference was made earlier to

         23  Best Buy's program, working in cooperation with the

         24  City, Mr. Chairman, in September on Staten Island,

         25  they collected over 36 tons and had some 1,200
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          2  people participate that day. And this is an example

          3  of what the industry is doing on its own.

          4                 We're looking forward to working with

          5  this Committee and the entire Council, moving toward

          6  a comprehensive effective way of handling

          7  electronics at their end of life. We hope you will

          8  strongly take into account that Albany is actively

          9  considering its own legislation, and that Congress

         10  is finally focusing on the issue.

         11                 I want to thank you for giving me the

         12  opportunity to appear here this afternoon. Thanks.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Thank you very

         14  much.

         15                 I do have just one question, or half

         16  statement, half question: At the end of the day the

         17  taxpayers who have to bear the responsibility of

         18  there not being a program in place are the people of

         19  the City of New York, because we have to pay a per

         20  tonnage fee to pick up these items, cart them, put

         21  them in trucks that create environmental deleterious

         22  affects in our neighborhoods, and we have to pay to

         23  landfill them.

         24                 So, we have an incentive here, and

         25  add to that the fact that we are then polluting the
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          2  environment because we're dumping these things in

          3  landfill right now. And I know that we have some

          4  volunteer efforts going on and that they work to

          5  some extent, but I also know that the composition

          6  waste study of our waste shows that this is going to

          7  be the largest growing element in the City's waste

          8  stream.

          9                 So, we see this as an urgent issue.

         10  We're paying for it every day. I know you guys are

         11  worried about the companies or the stockholders or

         12  the consumers who buy these electronic items having

         13  to pay more, but right now the people of the City of

         14  New York are paying more and we grew up, you know,

         15  next to the largest landfill in the world. So, we

         16  know what it's all about. So you guys are urging

         17  caution, don't worry, Washington will take care of

         18  it; what impetus does Washington have? You know,

         19  they don't have the urgency that we have.

         20                 Assemblyman Colton, thank you for his

         21  candor, said, hey, I can't promise what's going to

         22  happen in Albany. If you guys could move this along

         23  here it would be very helpful to the cause.

         24                 So, why should we wait for Washington

         25  and Albany when you told us that a year ago and the
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          2  year before that, and now it's just going to

          3  continue on?

          4                 MR. BRUGGE: I'll take the first shot

          5  at that, Mr. Chairman. I certainly appreciate that

          6  point. Washington unfortunately does not view this

          7  as an environmental issue. The federal EPA doesn't

          8  see it as an issue. They believe these products, if

          9  disposed of in landfills, are safe.

         10                 We view it as a financial issue,

         11  though, and that's why we're trying to drive this

         12  administration and congress to see it as a financial

         13  issue. All the varying state programs that are in

         14  place, I mentioned in my testimony there's about $25

         15  million in wasted costs that go in to implement

         16  those programs. So, we're trying to drive them to a

         17  national solution by presenting it as a financial

         18  issue, because we do believe that these products

         19  should be recycled.

         20                 There are components within these

         21  products that should be reused, and that's our

         22  approach and that's the way we feel we can get

         23  congress's attention to act on the issue.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: And I thank you

         25  for your candor, but, you know, you're telling us to
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          2  rely on a government, a federal government that

          3  doesn't seen the disposition of Cathode Ray Tubes

          4  and mercury and cadmium and nickel into the earth as

          5  an environmental issue, number one.

          6                 And number two, at least you agree on

          7  the economic side it would be an issue. But you see,

          8  the people that I represent have to pay for the

          9  hauling and landfilling of these items. So, while

         10  nothing happens in Albany and Washington, we pay for

         11  it through the cost of collection, through the

         12  environmental effects of trucking in our

         13  neighborhoods, and putting in land, you know,

         14  landfilling these toxic items. It's a bigger issue

         15  for waste management because we don't have any more

         16  landfills in the City and we're landfilling in other

         17  states. So, we want them to accept our trash for

         18  landfilling, and yet we're sending things, at least

         19  with all due respect to the federal EPA, I think are

         20  environmental concerns. You want us to just keep

         21  continuing to do that until the federal government

         22  comes up with a solution that probably we don't

         23  think will be much of a solution.

         24                 MR. GOSS: Can I add onto that, or

         25  respond to that? I think the key point is we're not
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          2  necessarily saying wait for Washington to act, and I

          3  talked to Carmen earlier today and we discussed, he

          4  knows I used to work up in Albany, I worked for one

          5  of the State legislators for a bunch of years and I

          6  know that there is not a whole lot of desire to wait

          7  and see, to see what Washington may or may not come

          8  up with. The point I would reiterate from my

          9  testimony, though, is we're not saying let's just

         10  sit around and wait. Our companies in our industry

         11  went to Congress last year and said let's get this

         12  resolved. Now, if it happens at the federal level,

         13  that would clearly be our preference, but we want to

         14  get this issue taken care of. I mean, there are

         15  obvious very important resource, conservation issues

         16  here, to be aware of, if you want to get this taken

         17  care of properly.

         18                 I will add on the environmental side,

         19  to echo what Mr. Brugge said, when you look at

         20  electronics that are disposed of in properly

         21  permitted and operated landfills, not only USEPA but

         22  the landfill operators have said, yes, that is a

         23  safe practice. And now I want to be clear, that's

         24  not what we're saying. We're not saying, oh, go

         25  ahead and keep throwing things in landfills. That's
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          2  clearly not the preference here. But I think it's

          3  important to understand from an entire public policy

          4  approach, that there are elements in our products

          5  such as lead and mercury which can have an effect if

          6  they're not managed properly. Obviously the export

          7  issue, as some of the prior witnesses mentioned, is

          8  an important issue, and our industry has taken steps

          9  within what's allowed out there and what the federal

         10  government has done, to try to cut off the flow of

         11  some of these products to uncontrolled export

         12  markets.

         13                 So, the key point I would say is that

         14  we are trying to get this taken care of. We want to

         15  come up with a dedicated financing system to do

         16  this, to not have it be necessarily on the

         17  taxpayers, to find a way to do it, but to do it in a

         18  way that's fair for all the market participants, not

         19  to just hand certain members a bill for hundreds of

         20  millions of dollars and let the worst actors in the

         21  industry take over the market, that's not a

         22  solution. I don't think it's a solution for our

         23  company, certainly I don't think it's a solution

         24  that any of us would like to see. There needs to be

         25  a way to do it fairly.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Well, I

          3  appreciate that. Let me just make a point, that even

          4  from the environmental perspective, it's the issue

          5  of landfilling but also from a sustainability that

          6  you preserve resources by recycling.

          7                 MR. GOSS: Agreed.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: But having said

          9  that, Council Member DeBlasio.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: Thank you

         11  very much, Mr. Chairman. I agree with all of your

         12  comments, and I appreciate all of the testimony

         13  here. Obviously this bill was put together having

         14  tried to think through a number of these issues, but

         15  I do want to say we obviously want to commend all

         16  the companies that are trying to be environmentally

         17  responsible, and I appreciate the concern raised

         18  that there are bad actors that we don't want to in

         19  any way advantage in this process. So, it doesn't to

         20  be honest make me want to run out and change the

         21  legislation per se. It does mean that I think you've

         22  made a fair point, that we understand the

         23  complexities of the market, and lord knows, we are

         24  not trying to advantage people who have no interest

         25  in doing anything right in terms of the environment
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          2  or in terms of the impact on the citizens we

          3  represent.

          4                 I think, you know, we will look at

          5  those issues, we will look at everything we have

          6  raised here today, but at the same time, I'd say, I

          7  think if I'm getting the numbers right here, the

          8  testimony from Mr. Goss about 25 percent of the

          9  market being the small, the no brand manufacturers,

         10  and, you know, again, we understand that, but at the

         11  same time it appears that the vast majority of the

         12  market is the manufacturers who are more likely to

         13  be trying to utilize the right practices, and I

         14  don't think we can say because they are utilizing

         15  the practices it means we should not be looking out

         16  for the needs of our citizens and the long-term

         17  interests of the environment.

         18                 All I can say is I appreciate the

         19  logic or your point. I'm not sure what it says to us

         20  in terms of the specific approach we need to take.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Thank you all

         22  very much.

         23                 MR. ERDHEIM: Good luck with your

         24  dinner tonight.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Thank you.
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          2                 Okay, the next panel, Justin Wright

          3  from AEA; Frank Marella from Sharp Electronics; Alan

          4  Ratner from -- I can't, I'm sorry -- ISRI? And Wendy

          5  Neu from Environmental Enterprises.

          6                 Okay, go ahead. Thank you all for

          7  coming, and thank you for your patience. Ms. Neu,

          8  why don't you begin.

          9                 MS. NEU: Chairman McMahon and members

         10  of the Committee, my name is Wendy Neu. I'm

         11  testifying today on behalf of Environmental

         12  Entrepreneurs.

         13                 Environmental Entrepreneurs, which is

         14  E2 for short, is a national community of

         15  professionals and business people who believe in

         16  protecting the environment, while building economic

         17  prosperity.

         18                 Up until recently, I was also vice

         19  president, of Environmental and Government Affairs

         20  of Hugo Neu Corporation, and a former chair of the

         21  Government Relations Committee, ISRI.

         22                 E2 supports Intro. 104 because it

         23  provides an effective, long-term and sustainable

         24  solution to the serious problem of electronic waste.

         25                 And also, trust me, this is an
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          2  amazing business opportunity and should be treated

          3  as such, and it has enormous potential for economic

          4  development.

          5                 As others before me have explained,

          6  electronic products contain many toxic substances

          7  which then landfilled can leach into our

          8  groundwater. And when incinerated can emit mercury

          9  and heavy metal accumulation into the atmosphere, a

         10  serious environmental justice problem, particularly

         11  if you live in Newark.

         12                 Furthermore, disposing of these

         13  metals, i.e. resources, only requires more to be

         14  mined elsewhere, which is an energy-intensive

         15  environmentally destructive process. For these

         16  reasons, disposal of electronic waste is both

         17  irresponsible and recycling therefore should be

         18  essential.

         19                 Intro. 104 establishes the right

         20  incentives for industry to develop reasonable,

         21  responsible solutions to the e-waste problem. E2

         22  supports this bill because, one, it encourages

         23  design-through recycling, and indirectly

         24  accountability; two, allows the market to work

         25  effectively and provides for enforcement; and three,
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          2  makes economic sense for the City of New York.

          3                 One of the biggest challenges that

          4  any recycler faces is dealing with product toxicity.

          5  Handling toxins is a serious liability for the

          6  recycling industry, and remains a significant

          7  obstacle to achieving even higher recycling rates.

          8  By making manufacturers financially responsible for

          9  recycling the product that they design and sell,

         10  this bill creates a real incentive for manufacturers

         11  to design products that contain few toxins and are

         12  easier to recycle.

         13                 In addition, this bill allows the

         14  market to work effectively and more efficiently. As

         15  a business person, I expect to compete on both price

         16  and quality, by requiring manufacturers to

         17  internalize the cost of recycling the products they

         18  make, electronic makers are incentivized to not only

         19  compete with each other based on the cost and

         20  quality of their product while it is in use, but

         21  also to compete with each other based on the cost of

         22  recycling their product when it is no longer wanted.

         23                 With this bill, a producer that

         24  invests in making a product easier to recycle, will

         25  be able to benefit directly from redesigning and
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          2  re-engineering their products.

          3                 Though some manufacturers may oppose

          4  the idea of taking responsibility for the products

          5  they make, others have seized this as a market

          6  opportunity.

          7                 For example, Dell and Hewlett Packard

          8  have already begun to incorporate recycling into

          9  their business model. By integrating recycling costs

         10  into the product lifecycle, companies have a greater

         11  incentive to innovate and create environmentally

         12  safer and better products.

         13                 Finally, I support this bill as a New

         14  Yorker, because it appropriately shifts the

         15  financial cost of dealing with electronic waste off

         16  of New York City taxpayers and onto the

         17  manufacturers that created that waste to begin with.

         18                 As citizens and consumers and local

         19  governments, we should not subsidize this cost.

         20                 This bill would save New Yorkers

         21  money by removing a costly and growing part of our

         22  waste stream.

         23                 I applaud the City Council for your

         24  leadership in producing this bill, and urge you to

         25  pass this bill. The Council has a unique opportunity
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          2  to close the loop and make the City more

          3  environmentally sustainable by harnessing the power

          4  of economics and market.

          5                 Thank you for the opportunity to

          6  testify.

          7                 MR. MARELLA: Good afternoon, Mr.

          8  Chairman, members of the Committee. My name is Frank

          9  Marella. I'm Manager of Corporate and Environmental

         10  Affairs for Sharp Electronics, right across the

         11  river in Mahwah, New Jersey.

         12                 Sharp supports recycling. We do not

         13  manufacture waste, we manufacture products, which

         14  are sold globally to consumers everywhere.

         15                 Sharp supports a system that works. I

         16  am an engineer by trade. I like things that work. We

         17  are supportive of the California system because it

         18  works. The mechanics of the market are such that the

         19  only way to attach the cost of the product is at the

         20  time the product is either sold or collected and

         21  recycled, that's the way the mechanics work.

         22                 The California system has adopted

         23  that mechanics. That is why the California system is

         24  so successful.

         25                 California, in its first year,
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          2  diverted nearly 65 million pounds from the waste

          3  stream of covered electronic products. California

          4  did that for less than half of what it budgeted.

          5  They collected $73 million, they did the program for

          6  $31.6 million. Our estimates were actually that they

          7  would collect 77 million, and they would do it for

          8  36. So, we were off a little in both accounts. But

          9  the bottom line is the system works.

         10                 Mr. Erdheim told you they were

         11  already on track to collect 132 million pounds in

         12  this year, and, again, they will do it for under

         13  cost under this project.

         14                 We think this is the model that

         15  works, and that is why we support that. And one of

         16  the fatal flaws of this bill is that it does not

         17  address that mechanic, that basic mechanic to tie

         18  the cost to a specific product. It ties it to

         19  products in general, but that does not allow that

         20  cost to be fairly shared with those people who

         21  purchase the products, take advantage of the

         22  products, use the products for many years, the

         23  average for a television is 17 years, the average

         24  for a computer in the home, based on what is coming

         25  back in the waste stream, is actually closer to ten
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          2  years.

          3                 So, those people who get that use out

          4  of it should actually bear the cost at the end of

          5  life. When you purchase a Hershey Bar, you know you

          6  have to dispose of the wrapper properly. That is

          7  inherent in the purchase in any item, any piece of

          8  property by anyone. They are taking on that

          9  responsibility, and they're willing to pay the cost.

         10  And we believe that this bill has to address that in

         11  some way.

         12                 Sharp, and our other Coalition

         13  friends, have been working in California. Sharp was

         14  the first electronic manufacturer to internally

         15  recycle all it's internally-generated electronic

         16  waste, back in 1992. We were one of the first

         17  companies to work on a pilot program to address the

         18  collection of electronic recycling back in the

         19  mid-'90s. We know this is an issue, and we know it

         20  works and what doesn't work. And we would hope that

         21  we could work with you to address some of the

         22  mechanical fixes that are needed for this bill.

         23                 Thank you very much.

         24                 MR. WRIGHT: Mr. Chairman, members of

         25  the Sanitation Committee, I thank you for the
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          2  opportunity to submit testimony today to discuss

          3  electronic waste concerns with respect to five

          4  boroughs in New York City. My name is Justin Wright.

          5  I'm the Executive Director of the New York Council

          6  of AEA, also known as the American Electronics

          7  Association. In representing AEA throughout New York

          8  State, I have responsibility for policy

          9  implementation of AEA's public policy priorities. By

         10  way of background, AEA is the nation's largest high

         11  technology trade association, represents over 2,700

         12  high-tech companies, which span the high-tech

         13  spectrum from software semi-conductors, medical

         14  devices, computers, and internet technology,

         15  advanced electronics and telecommunication systems

         16  and services.

         17                 In the State of New York we represent

         18  a number of technology companies, including Symbol

         19  Technologies, Comtech Group, Aeroflax, to name just

         20  a few.

         21                 AEA commends this Committee for

         22  seeking out information from all corners of this

         23  important issue on electronic waste, including

         24  consumer groups, the retail community, the high-tech

         25  industry, and that effort will surely plumb the
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          2  depths of the issue and help to find a solution that

          3  fits within not only a local framework but a

          4  national, international rubric.

          5                 I would like to begin by saying that

          6  AEA and its member companies support a strong

          7  commitment towards protecting the environment. For

          8  one very important reason: safeguarding the

          9  environment cannot only help make New York a safer

         10  place to live for everyone, but our country as well.

         11                 However, it is the technology

         12  industry's fear that this bill in its current form

         13  will work as a road block for the sale and

         14  distribution for consumer electronics that not only

         15  New York's business community rely upon, but New

         16  York's consumers and government as well.

         17                 We, therefore, need to state our

         18  grave concerns with legislation.

         19                 Unease over the ultimate disposal of

         20  used electronics equipment is growing worldwide.

         21  Environmental fears surrounding electronic waste

         22  focus on a sheer volume of electronic equipment that

         23  is being discarded, as well as possible

         24  environmental damage from their components when

         25  they're landfilled or incinerated.
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          2                 Abroad, the European Union has been

          3  extremely active adopting two directives that

          4  strictly govern what high-tech companies can and

          5  cannot put into their products; namely the Waste

          6  Electrical and Electronic Equipment and the

          7  Restrictions on the Use of Certain Hazardous

          8  Substances in Electrical and Electronic Equipment

          9  RoHS Directives, which AEA worked hand-in-hand with

         10  the European Commission.

         11                 These efforts were recently mirrored

         12  here closer to home in California, where similar

         13  legislation was passed to closely track the EU

         14  legislation. The high-tech industry in collaboration

         15  with both California legislators and the

         16  environmental community, created a system where the

         17  strictest of international and domestic

         18  environmental rules currently guide the manufacturer

         19  of electronic equipment today on a global level.

         20                 Luckily, concern over the impact of

         21  electronic waste on the environment is shared

         22  equally between the high-tech industry that creates

         23  the products, the American-consuming public, and

         24  legislators across America.

         25                 Because of this, high-tech has
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          2  already taken the initiative to lessen the impact of

          3  e-waste on the environment, even beyond what is

          4  demanded from it by current regulatory requirements.

          5  From Design for Environment and Product Stewardship

          6  programs to public education campaigns, AEA member

          7  companies are working hard to lessen consumers'

          8  impact on the environment while working with state

          9  legislatures and federal government to make an

         10  effective mark on the issue of e-waste.

         11                 We do have some apprehension

         12  surrounding Intro. 104. Speaking more specifically,

         13  I'd like to state that it makes more clear the City

         14  Council's concerns with the problems of e-waste in

         15  the City, as well as the seemingly slow action at

         16  both the State and federal levels.

         17                 I'd like to pose to the Committee,

         18  however, the lack of action is not due to

         19  disinterest, but to strong concern that mis-steps

         20  will certainly harm consumers, businesses and

         21  manufacturers in unforeseen ways that others have

         22  mentioned.

         23                 Having said that, Intro. 104 imposes

         24  significant burdens on large and small businesses

         25  who manufacture electronics without contemplating
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          2  the role of those electronics.

          3                 Those who sell the electronics, those

          4  who buy the electronics, are those whose job it is

          5  to dispose of the waste in general.

          6                 Passage of Intro. 104 would act as a

          7  severe disincentive for business to sell directly

          8  into the City of New York.

          9                 Our concerns focus on two large

         10  issues, notwithstanding the specifics of Intro. 104,

         11  which we'll submit later.

         12                 Intro. 104 assumes that manufacturers

         13  are trading products without concern for the

         14  environment or the communities in which their

         15  products are sold. This is farther from the case, as

         16  mentioned earlier, high-tech manufacturers have made

         17  significant investments in design for environment

         18  over the past several years, in an effort to

         19  eliminate or minimize the use of certain materials,

         20  as well as to allow for ease of recycling of these

         21  electronic products.

         22                 Several companies have ongoing

         23  recycling programs. The high-tech industry is

         24  committed to reducing the environmental impacts of

         25  our products through their life cycle from design to
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          2  use to end of life without having to do so via local

          3  legislative imperative.

          4                 As it stands today, New York City is

          5  the beneficiary of these ongoing efforts.

          6                 Second, Intro. 104 assumes that

          7  manufacturers have control over which of their

          8  products are sold within New York City.

          9                 This is also an understandable

         10  misconception. Most AEA companies who manufacture

         11  electronic equipment do only that, manufacture the

         12  equipment.

         13                 Those electronic goods are then sold

         14  to large national retailers and value added

         15  resellers who are responsible for their distribution

         16  in the five boroughs.

         17                 Manufacturers have no control over to

         18  whom, where or when the products are sold.

         19  Retailers, on the other hand, create and control

         20  data, such as Citywide sales and market share, data

         21  which Intro. 104 relies upon for effectuation.

         22                 As such, we believe that national,

         23  regional local retailers have the responsibility

         24  over end-of-life issues that Intro. 104 seeks to

         25  address.
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          2                 We also have some specific concerns

          3  with Intro. 104. There are some definitional issues,

          4  which we would like to address. There are some

          5  issues related to scope. Harmonization issues with

          6  State, federal and international laws, the orphan

          7  waste issue, which you've heard dealt with, what

          8  weight of responsibility retailers and consumers

          9  share in this process, the shared responsibility

         10  with New Yorker's waste collection facilities,

         11  distinguishing consumer sales from business to

         12  business and business to government sales, in which

         13  many cases contractual obligations have taken place.

         14  And particularly issues with mandatory labels on

         15  products that keep getting tiny and tinier. If you

         16  pick up a laptop computer, it's really a good

         17  indication that you can't really read the labels

         18  anymore.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Mr. Wright, I

         20  mean no disrespect, but we lose the room because

         21  there's an event here at 5:00, so if you could just

         22  hit the highlights. I would give you all afternoon,

         23  but I didn't manage the time very well.

         24                 MR. WRIGHT: Sure. That's okay.

         25                 Inside our testimony you will see
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          2  that we've laid out some core principles over what

          3  we think is good electronic waste legislation, and I

          4  hope that you will take an opportunity to look over

          5  those principles. Really the heart of what we're

          6  saying is that we support a shared responsibility

          7  approach.

          8                 We don't believe that as many -- as

          9  you've heard from the manufacturers who have

         10  testified, they view this as punitive. We think

         11  there is some middle of the road that can be

         12  discussed here, and it's a shared responsibility

         13  between the consuming public, City of New York. You

         14  know, we've all benefitted from the uses of

         15  technology, the manufacturers, the retailers who

         16  were involved in selling, distributing the products

         17  in this for a profit as well. So, we need a shared

         18  responsibility model as opposed to a producer

         19  responsibility model. Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Thank you. Could

         21  you just go back to page two of your testimony.

         22                 MR. WRIGHT: Sure.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: You didn't read

         24  the fourth paragraph.

         25                 MR. WRIGHT: AEA would like to commend
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          2  Carmen Cognetta, Counsel to the Committee, for the

          3  exemplary work he has done in working with the

          4  high-tech industry. And I left it out just because

          5  of time sake.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Keep going.

          7  There's one more sentence.

          8                 MR. WRIGHT: He is smart, savvy and

          9  tough.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Thank you, Mr.

         11  Wright.

         12                 MR. WRIGHT: And we found that in his

         13  individual meeting, and we left that out due to

         14  time. I have to catch a train, too.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Thank you very

         16  much. Thank you.

         17                 MR. HARRIS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         18  My name is Eric Harris. I'm here today -- thank you,

         19  also, Council members. I'm here today representing

         20  Institute of Scrap Recycling Industry. We are a

         21  trade association outside of Washington, D.C. that

         22  represent up to 400 for-profit recyclers, brokers

         23  and consumers of recyclable materials that include a

         24  number of commodities, including metal, papers,

         25  plastics, electronics and textiles.
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          2                 It's important to understand that in

          3  developing our policy and positions on our

          4  testimony, the historical basis of this association

          5  dates back well to the turn of the century. So, we

          6  have a number of, if you will, wise gray beards in

          7  our association that weighed into how this policy

          8  should move forward.

          9                 In doing so, I have presented written

         10  comments to you, and I just want to highlight a

         11  couple of key points based on a conversation with

         12  Council staff, a couple of key questions based on

         13  the recyclers' perspective, and that is, how best to

         14  utilize the current recycling infrastructure; and,

         15  two, how to keep the sham recyclers out of this

         16  process.

         17                 The first question is really, my

         18  membership comes up to me and says, hey, we're

         19  traditional metal guys, we do ferris, non-ferris,

         20  maybe some paper on the side, how do we make money

         21  off this? And so you may ask yourself, why are these

         22  for-profit recyclers coming up asking for the

         23  government, not only federal, state and now local,

         24  to subsidize the industry, and the question -- the

         25  answer is best analogous to a traditional car, and
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          2  that is, if you remove the oil and the batteries and

          3  the gas and the likes, what we determine the

          4  hazardous materials in a car, when you calculate the

          5  cost to collect, transport and then recycle that

          6  car, you end up with a recyclable commodity to have

          7  a great value on the international quantities

          8  market. That's not the case for electronic scrap.

          9                 You have a number of commodities, a

         10  number of systems that have what we call negative

         11  cost. So, we are burdened with trying to develop a

         12  sustainable infrastructure for this new commodity,

         13  and then trying to juggle how we're going to pay for

         14  it.

         15                 So, as this particular commodity

         16  matures, you may understand or remember that the

         17  metals market wants to subsidize during the war

         18  times. The paper market has been subsidized in order

         19  to jumpstart that process, and so forth and so on.

         20  And that's what we're here today, to support the

         21  jumpstarting of a financial mechanism in the

         22  short-term, to spur investment and in-use market

         23  development within this particular commodity.

         24                 Now, we are advocating for a producer

         25  responsibility approach for a couple of reasons. The

                                                            170

          1  SANITATION AND SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT

          2  primary reason is it best emulates current business

          3  to business models. The contractual relationships

          4  between businesses to drive down cost using current

          5  market conditions.

          6                 We certainly feel that if you create

          7  a competitive environment within the manufacturing

          8  community, and make them responsible for the cost to

          9  collect, transport, sort and recycle these

         10  materials, they will find creative ways to reduce

         11  their own cost. It's important to remember it's

         12  their products. They design them. We can't design

         13  them for them. We can just encourage them to design

         14  them better. We have a concept at ISRI called

         15  "design for recycling," where we encourage and try

         16  to work with manufacturers to enhance their design

         17  to reduce the impediments to recycling.

         18                 What does that mean to the

         19  manufacturer? It means an opportunity to reduce

         20  their cost, and that's why producer responsibility

         21  can work to better enhance design.

         22                 Just a quick comment on the ARF in

         23  California, the Advanced Recycling Fee. It's worth

         24  noting that certainly recyclers in California are

         25  doing very well, and you'll be hard-pressed to find
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          2  someone who is against receiving money for the

          3  recycling process.

          4                 But keep in mind what we're after

          5  here is a sustainable recycling infrastructure. We

          6  have some concerns that the AFT system is inflating

          7  the price of recycling for services provided for

          8  those commodities.

          9                 We heard from the representative from

         10  Maine that they're using a 19 cents per pound model.

         11  In California they're at a fixed, unflexible rate of

         12  48 cents a pound. Well, we're concerned that that is

         13  over-inflating the value for that service provided,

         14  and ultimately is creating an unsustainable

         15  approach.

         16                 More importantly, the model in

         17  California discourages re-use. You have to service

         18  these products in order to get paid. And so we

         19  certainly, if you look at the complexity of the

         20  economics behind recycling electronics, you'll see

         21  that reuse and remanufacturing plays a significant

         22  role in making this a sustainable model.

         23                 And lastly, the unnecessary

         24  bureaucracy, at last account it was 10 to 15 million

         25  dollars just for the State of California to move
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          2  this process forward.

          3                 Now, with that said, there are a

          4  couple of suggestions worth noting in moving your

          5  particular bill forward. The model needs to adjust

          6  for what I would call a local and long-term market.

          7  In Washington State we were able to insert language

          8  into the bill to protect and enhance local

          9  businesses. And that's very important because a

         10  number of these systems are being recycled outside

         11  of the City and outside of the State of New York.

         12  So, we institute a mandatory reasonable payment

         13  linked to reasonable performance. So, if you had a

         14  recycler that could meet performance standards, then

         15  they shall get a reasonable payment in return.

         16                 In addition, we are advocating for a

         17  sunset provision that a mandatory review by the DES

         18  or by this Council after a certain amount of time to

         19  see if this system is still necessary to move

         20  forward.

         21                 Just a quick note on the collection

         22  and marketing process. We certainly want to apply

         23  the Council's direction here. We certainly see the

         24  benefit for a flexible approach and a multi-pronged

         25  approach that covers a number of aspects. It's
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          2  important to remember that one of the challenges of

          3  these commodities is this is not like the bottles,

          4  the papers, the other scrap. A single stream can be

          5  difficult because there are transportation and

          6  packaging issues that if you throw them all into a

          7  bin, or if you improperly collect these materials,

          8  you can significantly reduce the reusable amount.

          9  So, you can reduce the economics. You've got to

         10  think through how you're going to collect these

         11  materials and who is going to do it.

         12                 But certainly worth noting that there

         13  are a number, we just came from an e-scrap show in

         14  Austin, a huge success, and one of the things we're

         15  seeing, last year there was a significant impetus on

         16  legislation, regulation. This year there was much

         17  more chatter about markets, retail communities

         18  talking to recyclers, manufacturers talking to

         19  recyclers, how can we make these models work?

         20                 One of the things from a collection

         21  standpoint is a number of opportunity between the

         22  retail community and the recycling community, the

         23  joint venture up, make a collection day very

         24  effective, and most importantly what we're seeing is

         25  on those collection days, these retail facilities
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          2  are seeing a spike in their sales, so they are

          3  becoming very interested in how they may take a

          4  bigger role in collection.

          5                 So, moving on to how to keep these

          6  sham recyclers out. For any of you who don't know

          7  what a sham recycler is, it's basically the recycler

          8  that visits Ted Smith and his nightmares. With

          9  recycling roots over 100 years, we are appalled at

         10  the egregious behavior of what we call a dumping in

         11  overseas markets. But with that said, we need to

         12  resist the temptation to over-regulate this market.

         13  A key policy principle in the industry is scrap is

         14  not waste, and disposal is not recycling.

         15                 EPA, if you recall, just came out

         16  with their final rule for Cathold Ray Tubes and

         17  basically said there is a conditional exclusion for

         18  the definition of solid and hazardous waste, and

         19  basically saying that these, electronic scrap is

         20  more commodity like, and we should encourage

         21  responsible recycling.

         22                 The challenge, of course, is to link

         23  reasonable payment to reasonable performance, and

         24  here is the solution we're putting forward, that

         25  linking reasonable cost to operating standards with
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          2  measurable targets with an auditing system in place.

          3                 In the industry we have created what

          4  we call RIOS, the Recycling Industry Operating

          5  Standard, which is a comprehensive integrated

          6  system. It takes the best components of an ISO

          7  system for environment, quality and OSHA standards

          8  for health and safety. And we brought, integrated

          9  those systems into a system design for recyclers by

         10  recyclers. We have that standard in place.

         11                 In addition, on the back of your

         12  written comments, you will see some operating

         13  practices. The Electronics Council that governs this

         14  issue at ISRI, took it upon themselves to take on

         15  this issue of how best to recycle electronics, and

         16  we developed operating practices, and what that is

         17  akin to is performance metrics, measurable targets

         18  that recyclers can weave into their operating

         19  standard like RIOS. And, of course, the most

         20  important part is the back end, is make sure this is

         21  an audible practice.

         22                 Lastly, I know this may be a very

         23  unpopular position in this state -- in this City,

         24  excuse me -- but we certainly do see the benefit of

         25  a disposal ban for this equipment. We have to ensure
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          2  that this equipment gets to the recycler's hands. We

          3  often forget that at the end of the day it's our

          4  guys who recycle the stuff, so if you have a

          5  disposal ban, coupled with high-performance

          6  standards, then you're going to encourage the

          7  recyclers like the news of the world to invest the

          8  dollars necessary to sustain this infrastructure.

          9                 My last comment is that government

         10  oversight within this flexible model remains very

         11  important. You want to be sure that you don't pont

         12  (sic) all of your ability to improve these plans.

         13  There's a great amount of flexibility, it's notable,

         14  but also we need to ensure that those pro rate

         15  percentages are met, that reasonable cost to collect

         16  and recycle for recyclers are paid, and that

         17  legitimate reuse is encouraged, and of course,

         18  reasonable performance metrics are met.

         19                 Just lastly, as far as the national

         20  or state program, certainly if you look at other

         21  comprehensive environmental bills, it's certainly

         22  within the Council's purview to say, as long as

         23  there is a program that's put forward that's equal

         24  to or better than our program, we would certainly

         25  step aside. Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Thank you all

          3  very much. Thank you. Thank you for your patience.

          4                 Next group, Tom Outerbridge from Sims

          5  Hugo Neu. And we have two people who signed in from

          6  Advanced Recovery, Mark Rea and Patrick Dellamura,

          7  if we could combine that into one we'd appreciate

          8  it. James Hogan from WeRecycle, and Sharon Stone

          9  from New York City Zero Waste Company -- Coalition.

         10  Coalition, sorry.

         11                 Go ahead. Why don't we start going in

         12  this direction.

         13                 MR. HOGAN: Yes, sir, Mr. Chairman.

         14  And thank you, Mr. Chairman and Committee members.

         15  My name is James J. Hogan, I represent WeRecycle,

         16  Incorporated, an electronics and universal waste

         17  recycling firm in Meriden, Connecticut, and we

         18  commend the Council for recognizing the need for

         19  proper environmentally sound management of

         20  electronic waste.

         21                 With few regulations currently in

         22  place, there is widespread mismanagement of this

         23  potentially toxic ever-growing component of our

         24  waste stream. Disposal in the trash results in

         25  incineration or landfill of a wide range of

                                                            178

          1  SANITATION AND SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT

          2  hazardous materials, so electronics should be

          3  recycled.

          4                 Some people believe that federal

          5  legislation is needed to control the management of

          6  this waste. While we do agree that federal

          7  legislation would bring uniformity to the management

          8  of this class of waste, we see it as unlikely that

          9  such legislation would be adopted any time soon. So,

         10  in the meantime we have continued improper disposal

         11  of a growing environmental hazardous waste stream.

         12  Without proper legislative controls, the

         13  indiscriminate shipping of electronic waste to third

         14  world countries will continue.

         15                 The processing of electronics by

         16  prison labor continues and the environmental impacts

         17  related to such improper management techniques

         18  continue to mount.

         19                 We urge the Council to adopt

         20  legislation that protects our environment, by

         21  fostering the safe handling of electronic equipment

         22  sold in the City of New York. Thank you very much.

         23                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank

         24  you very much.

         25                 Next witness, please.
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          2                 MR. REA: Good afternoon, Chairman

          3  McMahon, distinguished members of the Sanitation and

          4  Solid Waste Management Committee and guests. My name

          5  is Mark Rea, Jr., and I am the E-Commerce Manager at

          6  Advanced Recovery, Incorporated. Advanced Recovery

          7  is dedicated to both the recycling and reuse of

          8  computer and other electronic-related materials. We

          9  have found that many electronics deemed as outdated

         10  or not functional, may still be suitable for reuse

         11  with a minor amount of technical repair. Those

         12  materials that are deemed not refurbishable are

         13  dismantled to their basic components and marketed as

         14  raw materials for their residual scrap value.

         15                 With this process of technical

         16  repairs for the reusable materials and labor

         17  associated with dismantling operations for recycled

         18  materials, incorporated with high transportation

         19  costs, comes the financial burden of handling these

         20  hazardous materials. There would be a benefit to

         21  both the recycling and reuse companies as well as

         22  the residents of New York City, for the

         23  manufacturers of computers and electronic-related

         24  materials containing hazardous substances, to share

         25  the financial burden incorporated with the recycling
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          2  and reuse of these materials.

          3                 Advanced Recovery would like to work

          4  jointly with the manufacturing companies of these

          5  electronic materials and the City of New York, in an

          6  effort to positively impact the environment.

          7                 The collection and processing of the

          8  recycled electronic equipment is one part of the

          9  dilemma at hand. Two more difficult steps are to

         10  both create a greater sense of awareness with

         11  consumers regarding the recycling needs of this

         12  hazardous equipment, and also to come to equitable

         13  terms on the distribution of the associated

         14  financial burden.

         15                 We believe the manufacturers of

         16  computers and electronic-related material should

         17  share in the financing to aid in the ever-growing

         18  responsibility to protect our environment.

         19                 Not to say that this responsibility

         20  should be solely placed on the manufacturers and

         21  leave the consumers to their own discretion to

         22  properly recycle.

         23                 Undoubtedly, the manufacturers would

         24  pass the cost through to consumers to share either

         25  all or part of the financial burden. The
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          2  contributions of both consumers and manufacturers

          3  would benefit the consumers, manufacturers, fellow

          4  New Yorkers and the environment in the long run.

          5                 All in all, it is the responsibility

          6  of everyone to contribute towards the recycling

          7  efforts that we are faced with today. Manufacturers

          8  must recognize and address the issues of the

          9  hazardous materials that make up their equipment,

         10  consumers must be aware of the negative effects

         11  these materials have on the environment and the

         12  proper recycling avenues available. We must all move

         13  toward an environmentally responsible society backed

         14  by fair and equitable legislation.

         15                 Thank you for your time and this

         16  opportunity to speak on behalf of Advanced Recovery.

         17                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank

         18  you very much. Next witness, please.

         19                 MR. DELLAMURA: Good afternoon,

         20  Chairman McMahon, distinguished members of the

         21  Sanitation and Solid Waste Management Committee and

         22  guests, my name is Pat Dellamura and I'm speaking to

         23  you today as both a business man and community

         24  leader.

         25                 I'm the Director of Sales and
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          2  Marketing at Advanced Recovery, Incorporated, a

          3  computer electronics data recovering recycling

          4  company, with facilities in Newark, New Jersey and

          5  Port Jervis, New York.

          6                 In addition, I'm the Vice President

          7  of the Gravesend Bensonhurst Quality of Life

          8  Committee, a grassroots civic organization in

          9  Southwest Brooklyn which is in Assemblymember

         10  William Colton's district.

         11                 We are here today on a fact-finding

         12  mission as it relates to amending an administrative

         13  code on recycling, reuse and safe handling of

         14  electronic equipment in New York City.

         15                 Working hand-in-hand with the

         16  Sanitation Department's Recycling Unit Intel and the

         17  Lower East Side Ecology Center, Advanced Recovery

         18  can attest to the staggering amount of computers and

         19  electronic equipment which are discarded annually by

         20  New York City residents.

         21                 At our recent collection events

         22  throughout the five boroughs of the September and

         23  October, over 5,000 people voluntarily participated

         24  and we received approximately 200 tons of monitors,

         25  CPUs, TVs, stereos, laptops, and other related
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          2  electronics.

          3                 Our operation enables us to

          4  dismantle, recycle and refurbish these items, thus

          5  eliminating having to add to hazardous waste

          6  management concerns.

          7                 The infamous Fresh Kills Landfill on

          8  Staten Island has finally been closed, ending a sad

          9  legacy to our proud New York City history. The City

         10  is now dealing with the issue of possibly opening a

         11  number of marine transfer stations in order to deal

         12  with the never-ending solid waste management

         13  situation.

         14                 But are we headed in the best

         15  possible direction politically, socially and

         16  environmentally? We're all aware of the

         17  health-related and quality of life issues concerning

         18  the electronic waste component disposal of toxic

         19  substances, such as lead, mercury and cadmium. Is

         20  this proposed plan cost effective to New York City

         21  and its residents?

         22                 What role should computer and

         23  electronic manufacturers have to ensure that his is

         24  a viable plan and solution? These companies should

         25  work directly with the manufacturers to ensure that
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          2  components are properly recycled back into the

          3  manufacturing stream.

          4                 The issue before us today needs to be

          5  seriously reviewed, discussed and evaluated from all

          6  vantage points, because it will ultimately effect

          7  future generations of New Yorkers.

          8                 Thank you for your time and

          9  consideration.

         10                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Next

         11  witness, please.

         12                 MR. OUTERBRIDGE: Yes. Good afternoon,

         13  Chair McMahon, members of the Committee. I will try

         14  to keep my comments very brief. My name is Thomas

         15  Outerbridge. I'm the manager of the Municipal

         16  Recycling Division at Sims Hugo Neu. As I think you

         17  know, we're very involved with recycling in the

         18  City, handling the metal, glass and plastic

         19  collected by the Department of Sanitation to the

         20  curbside recycling program.

         21                 You may not know, we're also as a

         22  company extremely involved with electronic waste

         23  recycling around the world. We're the largest

         24  e-scrap recycler in the European Union, and we're

         25  also one of the largest e-scrap recyclers in
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          2  California, which is, probably as you know, getting

          3  along the furthest, in terms of diversion of

          4  electronics disposal in the US.

          5                 So, I'm here really to sort of say

          6  that I'd like to, or certainly would like to take

          7  advantage and make use of the infrastructure and

          8  experience we have with recycling in general here in

          9  the New York City metropolitan area, and the

         10  expertise the company has at large, with e-scrap

         11  recycling, to be part of any solution that the City

         12  ultimately finds before it.

         13                 There's a couple -- we actually have

         14  some electronics, sort of our e-scrap specialists

         15  are actually moving to the northeast in the near

         16  future because of all the activity that's going on,

         17  not just here but in New Jersey and Pennsylvania,

         18  and we'll be providing I think some detailed

         19  comments on this intro. There's a couple of things

         20  that obviously stand out to me. One is that we've

         21  heard earlier today the idea of standards for

         22  recyclers. From our standpoint we expect to do it

         23  properly, and sometimes that costs more, so we want

         24  to make sure that if we're doing the right thing in

         25  the way we recycle material, that it's not putting

                                                            186

          1  SANITATION AND SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT

          2  us at a disadvantage with other companies that may

          3  be maybe not doing as well from an environmental

          4  standpoint. And then there's going to be a number of

          5  other comments I'd like to make on the legislation

          6  to ensure that it can be put in place, given all the

          7  sort of logistical issues there are in New York

          8  City. A special situation with regard to collection

          9  we've heard a lot of today, and I think that there's

         10  some contribution we can make to this bill and we'll

         11  provide some comments in writing. Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Thank you.

         13                 I was just going to say, Mr.

         14  Outerbridge, I like it better when you come and

         15  advocate enhancing recycling than the Port Ivory MRF

         16  -- no, it wasn't a MRF.

         17                 MR. OUTERBRIDGE: It was an

         18  environmentally sound waste export plan that would

         19  have saved the City hundreds of millions of dollars.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: As I said, I

         21  like it better having you here today than trying to

         22  put that open-ended garbage in a facility in my

         23  district. Thank you.

         24                 MS. STONE: Good afternoon. Thank you,

         25  Councilman McMahon, and members of the Sanitation
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          2  Committee, and your team, for all of the work that

          3  you've put in on this really important bill.

          4                 My name is Shannon Stone, and I'm

          5  here representing the New York City Zero Waste

          6  Campaign, which I have participated in since its

          7  inception in 2003, I currently participate in as

          8  Chair of the New York City group of the Sierra Club,

          9  Sierra Waste Project.

         10                 The New York City Zero Waste Campaign

         11  is a diverse group of environmental social justice

         12  and neighborhood organizations pushing the City to

         13  achieve zero waste through aggressive waste

         14  prevention composting, reuse, recycling, and of

         15  course, extended producer responsibility

         16  initiatives.

         17                 The New York City Zero Waste Campaign

         18  fully supports Intro. 104, because it is based on

         19  the model of extended producer responsibility,

         20  defined as a policy approach that makes

         21  manufacturers responsible for the end-of-life stage

         22  of their products. Intro. 104 is essentially model

         23  EPR legislation for end-of-life recycling costs are

         24  incorporated into the original product price, so

         25  that consumers, by choosing the cheaper product will

                                                            188

          1  SANITATION AND SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT

          2  be rewarding the manufacturer with the most

          3  efficient recycling system.

          4                 Full extended producer responsibility

          5  is the only effective incentive for manufacturers to

          6  design their products that are safer for the

          7  environment, easier to recycle and will also

          8  stimulate the market for their post consumer

          9  material.

         10                 It is essential that any legislation

         11  passed must not sever this connection between the

         12  designer of the product and the responsibility for

         13  collection and recycling of the product's waste.

         14                 We do not support industry-sponsored

         15  ideas with tricky names, such as extended product

         16  responsibility or product stewardship. We have

         17  learned from California's legislation that advanced

         18  recycling fees, up-front set fees collected at the

         19  point of sale by the retailer are not workable.

         20                 California's electronic legislation

         21  became a model of producer irresponsibility with the

         22  retailers collecting the fee and government making

         23  the collections and paying the recyclers.

         24                 Currently consumers are overpaying

         25  for recycling while paying for the large bureaucracy
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          2  required to administer the system. With this system,

          3  the producers have no role whatsoever in the end of

          4  life management of their products, and thus, no

          5  incentive to design them for safer handling and

          6  easier recycling.

          7                 Very importantly, this bill rewards

          8  the reuse of electronics. Reuse saves even more

          9  energy materials than recycling does, and is an

         10  added incentive to keep electronics in one piece

         11  during collection and transportation, whereas today

         12  electronics on the street are thrown into the back

         13  of garbage trucks and basically smashed in the open

         14  air releasing unknown amounts but probably

         15  significant amounts of toxic materials into the

         16  lungs of our sanitation service men.

         17                 In addition, this legislation, if

         18  enacted would lower our greenhouse gas emissions by

         19  reducing the waste stream and should be part of our

         20  developing comprehensive environmental

         21  sustainability action plan for New York City.

         22                 New Yorkers already pay over a

         23  billion dollars every year to collect, dispose, and

         24  recycle their waste. They have clearly shown their

         25  concern for the harm caused by disposing of
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          2  electronics as evidence by the widespread support

          3  and participation in the Lower East Side Ecology

          4  Center's electronic collections. We understand that

          5  industry leaders are putting a lot of pressure on

          6  the City Council Administration to weaken the

          7  legislation or urging them to wait for national

          8  legislation.

          9                 We are asking the City Council to

         10  remain steadfast and firm and not accept industry's

         11  excuses about why they cannot accept this

         12  legislation. Just to bring up a little history, in

         13  the late 80s early 90s, the environmental community

         14  pushed for producer responsibility laws at the state

         15  and federal level. Manufacturers defeated the

         16  federal legislation, which would have mandated

         17  post-consumer content requirements in new products

         18  just as localities, including New York City, were

         19  investing in recycling programs.

         20                 At the state level, quoting from the

         21  book, Governance of Integrated Product Policy,

         22  referring to the take back programs, "Producer trade

         23  associations were successful in promoting model

         24  legislation that assigned responsibility to

         25  government, consumers, or retailers, but not to

                                                            191

          1  SANITATION AND SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT

          2  themselves." Do not let history repeat itself, and

          3  please do not let go of the opportunity you have

          4  before you today.

          5                 Please keep the momentum going on

          6  this bill. You're doing great work.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Thank you all

          8  very much. And Tom, it wasn't a MRF, it was an EBUF.

          9                 MR. OUTERBRIDGE: It was an EBUF.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: I got it. All

         11  right.

         12                 I just want to ask the members from

         13  the recycling industry, if I can quickly, do the

         14  current recycling companies have the capacity to

         15  handle the e-waste that this bill would generate?

         16                 MR. REA: Yes, I believe so.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON OUTERBRIDGE: Tom.

         18                 MR. OUTERBRIDGE: Yes. I mean, from my

         19  standpoint, there is a fairly extensive

         20  implementation schedule with plans and so forth.

         21                 I mean, they're not overly

         22  complicated. It's a matter of space. The collection

         23  logistics I think is probably the trickiest part.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON OUTERBRIDGE: And just to

         25  the gentleman from Advanced Recycling who handled
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          2  the City's give-back program, if you know,

          3  approximately what percentage of the computers you

          4  collected were reusable? And what percentage of the

          5  electronic collection was TVs, what was computer

          6  equipment?

          7                 MR. REA: Without exact percentages,

          8  these are fairly recent events so we still have a

          9  ton of equipment we are going through. I'd probably

         10  say in the range of 60 to 70 percent of those

         11  specific computers, CPUs, are reusable material.

         12  Thirty to 40 percent are what would be considered

         13  scrap material and broken down to the bare

         14  components. Especially we find that the equipment

         15  that we have had from the five boroughs is actually

         16  pretty newer equipment, high-end equipment, that it

         17  just seems like maybe there's more of a quicker

         18  turnover of equipment in this area within the five

         19  boroughs.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Thank you all

         21  very much. What percentage is computers? What

         22  percentage TV?

         23                 MR. DELLAMURA: TVs and CRTs, monitors

         24  combined, probably contribute to close to 40 to 45

         25  percent of the total amount that we collected.
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          2  There's a large amount of televisions and monitors

          3  together.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Thank you, all.

          5                 MR. DELLAMURA: You're welcome.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Okay, I'm sorry.

          7  Lloyd Hicks from INFORM. The last panel, Christine

          8  Datz-Romero, and Michael Capobianco, Computers For

          9  Youth; Sarah Martin from Morning Heights West. Lloyd

         10  Hicks I said from INFORM. Christina, of course we

         11  all know, from Lower East Ecology Center.

         12                 Go ahead. Why don't we start on this

         13  side, sir. We'll save the best for last.

         14                 MR. HICKS: Good afternoon, Mr.

         15  Chairman, members of the Committee. My name is Lloyd

         16  Hicks, I'm the Director of the Solid Waste

         17  Prevention Program for INFORM, a national non-profit

         18  environmental research organization. Thank you for

         19  the opportunity to provide comments on this

         20  important proposed law. I will be brief.

         21                 As a professional, who has provided

         22  government and environmental agencies, advocacy

         23  groups and manufacturers, with guidance on the

         24  design and implementation of legislation for

         25  discarded electronics for the last one and a half
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          2  years, I am pleased to submit this testimony in

          3  support of Intro. 104.

          4                 I also commend the sponsors for

          5  recognizing extended producer responsibility, as a

          6  means for shifting the financial burden away from

          7  municipalities and incorporating end-of-life cost in

          8  the products' price.

          9                 Just one statement, I believe that it

         10  does encourage companies to design products that are

         11  easy to recycle, and I base this comment based on

         12  statements documented from companies that have made

         13  these statements, and I think that it's perhaps

         14  unfounded for the gentleman from Philips to state

         15  that the new entrants and these new manufacturers,

         16  as they're called, are not considering the ease of

         17  recycling when it comes to the design of the product

         18  and the design for the environment, and I just

         19  believe this is speculative and I think that there's

         20  probably only one researcher in the world that could

         21  actually decisively provide data on the differences

         22  between different manufacturers, and I would

         23  encourage, Mr. Chairman, to ask the gentleman from

         24  Philips to provide more data on these types of

         25  assessments that show there are differences in the
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          2  manufacturers today.

          3                 Let me just briefly touch on three

          4  reasons I believe New York City needs to address

          5  this. I have some pictures included in the comments.

          6  The first figure, it shows Cathold Ray two base

          7  monitors outside of a public school in Brooklyn, and

          8  these photographs really confirm what Council Member

          9  Brewer has addressed earlier, and immediacy of

         10  Intro. 104. CRTs are now banned from disposal in

         11  five states. These risks have already been touched

         12  on about potential exposure to lead, the crushing of

         13  the monitors in trucks, and although household can

         14  legally, you know, place these CRTs in curbside for

         15  disposal, a New York State official has pointed out

         16  that the electronics shown in the figure, figure

         17  one, were placed curbside in violation of federal

         18  hazardous management requirements for CRTs,

         19  specified under Resource Conservation Recovery Act.

         20                 And I will also importantly note that

         21  the Department of Education does not have contracts

         22  like DCAS has for City agencies for the 1,200

         23  schools that are producing these CRTs.

         24                 Once sent and collected for disposal

         25  outside of New York City, we have to capture and
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          2  treat the leachate from the landfill, scrub flu

          3  gases (sic), and there's no guarantee they're going

          4  to be disposed of here in the US, especially when

          5  they go through government surplus auctions like

          6  DCAS has.

          7                 There has been reports from the Bosel

          8  Action Network (phonetic) that documented the flow

          9  of these computers to Lagos, Nigeria. In figure 2

         10  you see an asset management tag on this monitor

         11  sitting outside of the school here in Brooklyn, and

         12  they believe that the brokers are purchasing this

         13  equipment and channeling it to Africa and other

         14  countries, China, India, Pakistan. And I can only

         15  speculate where this equipment will end up. It will

         16  be put out for recycling here in the US, it will end

         17  up in a container, destined for a place like Lagos,

         18  Nigeria, with crude recycling methods and routine

         19  burning of garbage dumps will harm the human

         20  environmental health.

         21                 So, I think we need to put in place a

         22  comprehensive well finance system to collect and

         23  responsibly recycle electronics discarded from our

         24  schools, government, residences and businesses.

         25                 And I think there has been some
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          2  numbers already on what the City has done with

          3  limited financial support, Sanitation, along with

          4  Lower East Side Ecology Center has collected 200

          5  tons in the last two years. This does, however,

          6  represent less than one percent of what is estimated

          7  to be in the New York City waste stream.

          8                 Just looking at waste

          9  characterization study, it is about .7 percent.

         10  That's about 25,000 tons, or six pounds per capita

         11  disposed of each year in the City. And let's just

         12  assume for argument's sake that the collection and

         13  processing cost would be 45 cents per pound,

         14  collecting this would cost $20 million a year to the

         15  City. And this is on top of some management costs

         16  that we're already seeing some preliminary cost

         17  studies from California and Maine at 32 cents per

         18  capita in California and 16 cents per capita in

         19  Maine, no difference.

         20                 And just based on the waste

         21  characterization study, we already see the City is

         22  spending 6.6 million per year just on the collection

         23  disposal, 154 for collection and 109 for the tipping

         24  fee.

         25                 So, let me just, I actually would
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          2  like to touch on one of the points also made by some

          3  of the proponents for the California system, that

          4  this system, the approach does take money directly

          5  from consumers at the sales counter and it directs

          6  it towards a government-run program.

          7                 For example, the only down side of

          8  this is that there is a financial, large financial

          9  reserve that has been generated in California and

         10  that's not something that's widely known.

         11                 For example, they've collected 116

         12  million in the first 18 months of operating the

         13  program, and the processes have only claimed 6.26

         14  million of it. And so the system will always be

         15  designed to collect fees up front and these reserves

         16  will continue to grow unless electronics are

         17  collected or the fees are lowered, and there is the

         18  difference herein that California assessed these

         19  fixed prices and other systems have used market base

         20  prices.

         21                 So, just to close, I would encourage

         22  you to look toward Washington State's structural and

         23  financial model and develop a collection approach

         24  that would work in the City. Washington State's law

         25  does not require individual manufacturers to take
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          2  back their own equipment, as in Intro. 104. Rather

          3  the manufacturer could submit it in the plan to

          4  collect its share or join a standard plan that would

          5  collect its share. And this actually goes back to

          6  Mr. Lange's comment about too many different plans

          7  having to be assessed by the government, or whatever

          8  agency chosen to assess these. And the manufacturers

          9  have to have five percent of the share which would

         10  in the worst case be 20 different plans, but there's

         11  a standard plan which many of the manufacturers will

         12  likely move towards.

         13                 So, I think that I would just wrap it

         14  up there, and just encourage you to also keep in

         15  mind that we need to monitor what's happening with

         16  the electronics that are collected, as I've

         17  portrayed to you, and reporting requirements that

         18  would be ideal for processors to be built into their

         19  plans so that they will report on what's happening,

         20  since the City's ability to pass any legislation

         21  dealing with export is quite questionable. I feel

         22  that the reporting requirements could also have some

         23  more detail on that, and that would be desirable.

         24  Thank you.

         25                 MS. DATZ-ROMERO: Yes, good afternoon.
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          2  My name is Christina Datz-Romero, and I'm the

          3  Executive Director of the Lower East Side Ecology

          4  Center, a local non-for-profit that has offered

          5  community-based recycling since 1987 and computer

          6  recycling programs here in the City since 2003.

          7                 I'm here to strongly support the

          8  passage of Intro. 104, and I would like to urge the

          9  City Council to adopt this law which sets goals and

         10  timetables for achieving recycling rates. Together

         11  with these strong goals, the law should also spell

         12  out recycling standards, stipulating that recyclers

         13  adhere to environmental and broker safety standards,

         14  and to avoid exporting of collected materials, as

         15  well as the use of prison labors. Recycling done

         16  right here will create viable jobs for the City and

         17  the region.

         18                 One good example right here in the

         19  Bronx is Priscolas (phonetic), and its job-training

         20  program which was actually featured in the New York

         21  Times article recently.

         22                 Electronic devices contain many toxic

         23  substances. We heard plenty of this today, and our

         24  organization, together with many others believe that

         25  extended producer responsibility is the best
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          2  incentive to reduced this toxicity and the burden on

          3  the environment that it place on the environment.

          4                 I would like to talk a little bit

          5  about the collection programs here in New York City.

          6  The Department of Sanitation collects about 34,000

          7  tons of e-waste, and of course, it's a growing

          8  amount that is generated every year, so that's about

          9   .901 percent of the waste stream that was

         10  collected, according to the 2004 characterization

         11  study.

         12                 Over the year, here in 2006, the

         13  Department of Sanitation has sponsored two City-wide

         14  recycling programs, one in the spring and one in the

         15  fall, and combined these programs have collected 306

         16  tons of electronics.

         17                 Our organization has also collected

         18  roughly 26 tons e-waste through three

         19  community-based recycling drives so far in 2006, and

         20  Priscolas has been very busy here offering a variety

         21  of residential collection programs. And I want to

         22  speculate that we have probably by the end of the

         23  year, will have collected 350 tons of e-waste in

         24  2006, which is a measly one percent of all the

         25  electronics being thrown out in the residential
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          2  waste stream. We obviously need more. We have a long

          3  way to go and we need this legislation to really

          4  address this problem that we are creating.

          5                 The events that Sanitation has

          6  sponsored have seen a tremendous growth. If you look

          7  at 2004 when about 1,000 New Yorkers came and

          8  recycled 40 tons of materials to 2006 where we had

          9  5,877 people come to contribute over 300 tons of

         10  materials. So, you can see there is a lot of

         11  willingness for people to come out for these events,

         12  we just need to offer more programs to give New

         13  Yorkers the chance to do the right thing.

         14                 I also feel it's important that

         15  residents in every borough have access to recycling

         16  programs and I would like to see language in your

         17  bill that would make sure of that so that these

         18  programs are offered from the Bronx to Staten

         19  Island, to everyone and not just concentrated in

         20  certain areas that might seem more lucrative than

         21  others.

         22                 And of course, in closing I need to

         23  plug more events that we're doing. We have events

         24  scheduled for Sunday, November 16th, in front of

         25  Lincoln Center. I hope that Council Member Brewer is
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          2  coming out, and will do a press conference. I also

          3  would love to see -- November 12th, sorry. I would

          4  love to see Council Member DeBlasio come to his

          5  event at PS 321, which we are organizing again with

          6  that school on December 9th, and I briefly with

          7  Lloyd Hicks from INFORM about the need for more

          8  recycling in schools of these events, and then we'll

          9  have an event at Union Square Park and the North

         10  Plaza on January 7th.

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 MR. CAPOBIANCO: Thank you, Chairman

         13  McMahon, and the members of the Committee, for

         14  allowing me to make the following remarks. I will be

         15  very brief. CFY, I represent CFY. My name is Mike

         16  Capobianco, at CFY, Computers For Youth. We're a

         17  national non-profit based here in New York City.

         18                 CFY is a national leader improving

         19  the home learning environment of low-income

         20  families. Established in 1999, New York City, we've

         21  already made a difference. We have distributed more

         22  than 8,000 computer-based home-learning centers to

         23  families in more than 20 school communities. This

         24  year we will serve 10,000 families since inception.

         25  Our goal by 2010 is to directly serve 10,000
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          2  students per year in five cities and supporting

          3  affiliates in all 50 states.

          4                 We currently employ 19 total

          5  full-time staff, and a varying number of part-time

          6  employees here in New York City. More specifically,

          7  there are six full-time staff members working at our

          8  warehouse in Long Island City, dedicated to

          9  refurbishing computers to see if -- donated to CFY

         10  from New York City-based corporations, and turning

         11  them into home-based learning systems, with

         12  educational software and internet access.

         13                 In fact, 95 percent of our computers

         14  come from the corporate community, even though those

         15  corporations more often than not do not receive any

         16  tax or other incentives to do so.

         17                 CFY also administers a help desk to

         18  serve our families. The help desk is staffed by

         19  individuals from the communities we serve, to learn

         20  valuable skills, such as customer service, conflict

         21  management, remedy software that then can be applied

         22  to future employment opportunities.

         23                 CFY supports No. Intro. 104, the

         24  electronic waste and recycling, reuse act because of

         25  what it can mean for low-income families. The word
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          2  "reuse" must be integral to this bill. Corporations

          3  and manufacturers must be given incentives to

          4  support organizations like CFY. We cannot compete

          5  against the for-profit recyclers for equipment. They

          6  can pay corporations for the equipment, and sell the

          7  same technology to overseas markets at huge profits.

          8                 As I indicated earlier, this year we

          9  will distribute our 10,000th computer. At an average

         10  of 30 pounds per computer, CFY has diverted 300,000

         11  pounds of e-waste from American landfills.

         12                 One recent student received his

         13  computer in 2001, came back to us, let us know he's

         14  bringing his computer to college with him. One

         15  example of many we're benefitting from the reuse of

         16  technology.

         17                 Bills like this are a great first

         18  step in helping to rid American landfills of toxic

         19  equipment and also to assist organizations like CFY

         20  to help meet the needs of thousands of low-income

         21  families, that desperately need usable technology in

         22  their home. We anxiously await the outcome.

         23                 Again, thank you for the opportunity

         24  represent Computers For Youth. We applaud you for

         25  taking the lead on such an important initiative.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Thank you. And

          3  thank you for the great efforts that your

          4  organization undertakes. And we are recognizing that

          5  in the bill and trying to make sure that there are

          6  credits to the companies for their donations to

          7  organizations like yours or directly to schools. So,

          8  we look forward to partnering with you in the

          9  future.

         10                 Ms. Martin, thank you for your

         11  patience.

         12                 MS. MARTIN: Good evening, Chair

         13  McMahon and Committee. Thank you for having this

         14  hearing today. I waited very long, been here all

         15  along, but I hung in there. My name is Sarah Martin,

         16  and I'm one of the Co-chairs of Morning Side Heights

         17  West Harlem Sanitation Coalition.

         18                 Since 1994, the Morning Side Heights

         19  West Harlem Sanitation Coalition has been working in

         20  our community to reduce waste and increase

         21  recycling, therefore, we strongly support the

         22  passage of City Council Intro. 104.

         23                 Electronic waste contributes to 70

         24  percent of pollutants such as mercury, lead and

         25  barium oxide to the waste stream. It is totally
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          2  irresponsible for us to allow this dangerous

          3  situation to continue. Yet, at this moment in time,

          4  there is no City mechanism for recycling

          5  electronics, except that which groups like ours

          6  voluntarily arrange. In addition, manufacturers take

          7  little responsibility for the products they produce.

          8                 Intro. 104 would reduce the toxins in

          9  the landfills, reduce the amount of waste that the

         10  City makes, hold manufacturers responsible for

         11  proper end of life treatment of their products, and

         12  in addition, make more refurbished low-cost

         13  computers available to the City's students and

         14  people of modest incomes. Because of the urgency of

         15  the situation, we hope this Committee will take

         16  action on Intro. 104 as soon as possible. Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Thank you, Ms.

         18  Martin.

         19                 Were you hear when one of the members

         20  of the electronics industry say that it's okay to

         21  throw, put the computers in, the CRTs into the

         22  landfill?

         23                 MS. MARTIN: Yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Did you hear

         25  that?
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          2                 MS. MARTIN: Yes, I did.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: What did you

          4  think?

          5                 MS. MARTIN: It was a great injustice

          6  for the lips to even word those words.

          7                 How could he possibly let something

          8  come out of his mouth like that?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Thank you.

         10                 Thank you, Ms. Martin.

         11                 Thank you all for your patience and

         12  for your advocacy. I want to thank the staff, Dan

         13  Avery, the Policy Analyst, for coming over from the

         14  Environmental Protection Committee for an afternoon.

         15  Veronica McNeil, our Financial Analyst, and of

         16  course, Carmen Cognetta. What was that quote? He's

         17  tough, savvy, handsome, what was it?

         18                 I want the record to reflect that

         19  Assemblyman William Colton from Brooklyn, who Chairs

         20  the Assembly Task Force on Solid Waste, of the

         21  Commission on Solid Waste is still with us and we

         22  appreciate that. It shows his commitment to this

         23  issue.

         24                 Having said that, I want to thank

         25  everyone for coming, and I hereby adjourn this
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          2  hearing of the New York City Council Committee on

          3  Sanitation and Solid Waste Management.

          4                 (Hearing concluded at 5:10 p.m.)
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          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter, do hereby certify that the

         11  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         12  within proceeding.

         13                 I further certify that I am not

         14  related to any of the parties to this action by

         15  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         16  interested in the outcome of this matter.
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